
WORK SESSION – 6 P.M. RE: BUDGET 
REGULAR WASECA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CLOSED SESSION PER M.S. 13.D.05 re: purchase or sale of real property 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 7 p.m.  

AGENDA 
            
1 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

2 MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Those wishing to speak must state their name and address for the record. Each person will have three 
(3) minutes to make his/her remarks. Speakers will address all comments to the City Council as a 
whole and not one individual councilmember. The Council may not take action on an item presented 
during the Public Comment period. When appropriate, the Council may refer inquiries and items 
brought up during the Public Comment period to the City Manager for follow up. 
 
5 REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 Southern Minnesota Innitiative Foundation  
 
6 CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Minutes –Regular City Council Meeting & Work Session, September 7 
B. Payroll & Expenditures  
C. Resolution 21-46: Setting TNT Meeting 
D. RCCA: Approval of Final Payment – 2021 Crack Seal & Seal Coat Project 
E. Approval of Contract Payment: Nielson Concrete  
F. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Southwest MN Housing Partnership 

 
7 ACTION AGENDA 

 
A. Public Hearings 
 - Resolution 21-47: Mayo Health Major Subdivision & Rezoning 
 - City of Waseca Text Amendments  
B. Resolution 21-44: Adopting 2022 Preliminary Levy & Proposed Budget 
C. Resolution 21-45: Adopting 2022 EDA Preliminary Levy 
D. Ordinance 1093: Annexing City Owned Land 
 

 
8 REPORTS 
 

A.     City Manager’s Report 
 B.     Commission Reports 
  - EDA (Srp, Mansfield) - Planning Commission (Arndt) 
  
9 ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
9B. CLOSED SESSION PER M.S. 13.D.05 re: purchase or sale of real property 
 



10.    ADJOURNMENT 
 



                 5



$1

525 Florence Avenue  l  PO Box 695  l  Owatonna, MN  55060  l  507.455.3215  l  www.smifoundation.org

$15For every donation of 

from  Waseca County

is invested back into 

Waseca County 

communities.*
*Includes grants, loans & programming

Waseca County 

Investments

47 LOANS
$1.6 million to Waseca County entrepreneurs

188 GRANTS
$1.1 million to support community initiatives

$5 million invested annually to the 20 counties of 

south central and southeastern Minnesota

We envision southern Minnesota as a prosperous and growing region with vibrant communities, innovative and successful 

economies, and engaged and valued citizens. To achieve this vision, Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation, a regional 

development and philanthropic organization, fosters economic and community vitality in 20 counties of southern Minnesota 

through a culture of collaboration and partnership. 

invested by SMIF in Waseca County 

through grants, loans, and programming for 

stronger kids, businesses and communities

Since 1986, Southern Minnesota Initiative 

Foundation has leveraged local investments & 

partnerships to create a stronger Waseca County:

$4.3 million
$285,000 in local donations to SMIF 



Loans & Equity Investments*  Supporting local entrepreneurs & creating jobs

Grants  Investments in economic development, early childhood and community vitality

Fit Time LLC Health and Fitness Center

Evan’s Eatery LLC, New Richland Food truck

American-style restuarant

Pleasant Grove Pizza Farm LLC, Waseca Food and event space

Trio Co"ee, Wine & Ale House LLC, Waseca Co"ee and wine bar

Waseca County Early Childhood Initiative Incredible Years group  helping families considered high risk

Waseca Public Schools Community Education & Recreation Grant to purchase “Gearing Up for Kindergarten” Curriculm

Making a Di"erence
Responding quickly to help our smallest communities through the pandemic

SMIF’s 2021 Small Town Grant program was entirely focused 

on responding to the needs that have emerged or increased 

as a result of the pandemic. The program dispersed a total 

$192,500 to towns of 10,000 or less in SMIF’s region. The 

Waseca-Le Sueur Regional Library was awarded $10,000 

for technology including internet hotspots for patrons who 

do not have access to those services but rely on the internet 

to work from home, do distance learning or have virtual 

medical visits.

Curb Appeal of Southern MN, Waseca Prosperity Initiative - business training for minority entrepreneurs

Waseca County Public Health Hundreds of books awarded through literacy grant

BEST of Waseca, Inc. Entrepreneurial monthly support group

*SCORE Chapter

Community Collaborations  Bringing communities together for change

� � � � � � � � � � � 	 	 � 
 � � � � � � �  �  �
New Richland Hartland Ellendale Geneva Public Schools Hundreds of books awarded through multiple literacy grants

Waseca BioBusiness Community Growth Initiative 

Waseca Early Childhood Initiative (started in 2010)

Increasing quality childcare through provider training

Half Pint Brewing Company, Waseca Brewery and taproom

Jensen Corporation, New Richland Construction and home services

JR’s Barn LLC, Waldorf Event center

Waseca Arts Council Incorporated Awarded 21 gallons of paint for murals in community areas

A#liate Funds  Increasing rural philanthropy

Waseca County Disaster Recovery Fund

Waseca-Le Sueur Regional Library Grant to provide wireless device and hotspot checkout

Emergency Child Care Grants 14 child care providers/centers received COVID-19 relief dollars

Janesville Waldorf Pemberton School District Grant to provide a safe learning environment during COVID-19

F2 Enterprises LLC, Waseca Trucking

Small Business Relief Grants 43 businesses received COVID-19 relief grants

Oscar’s All American Food & Drinks LLC

Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC Residential, business, and commercial cleaning service



SMIF provided $254,950 in immediate financial support to licensed child care  

providers. 491 family providers and 34 centers were awarded with immediate  

funds, serving approximately 1,800 children in southern Minnesota.

Emergency Child Care Grants

SMIF provided $101,218 in matching grants to 21 of our community foundations to support 

their localized relief efforts. By leveraging this opportunity, they were able to provide a total of 

$121,050 to their communities, impacting more than 56,000 people. 

Community Foundation Relief Grants

SMIF awarded three organizations $10,000 each through the Grow a Farmer Assistance 

Fund. They are working collaboratively to support at least 120 farmers in southern 

Minnesota through grants that help their businesses respond to new challenges. 

Grow a Farmer Assistance Grants

SMIF awarded 22 organizations a total of $192,500 to respond and recover  

from the hardships created by the crisis and the impact on their communities,  

all of which have populations of less than 10,000. 

Small Town Grants 

SMIF approved 28 Early Care and Education Wrap Around Grants grants totaling 

$370,000 in partnership with Minnesota Department of Education. This grant 

helped fund early care and education wrap around services for children birth to age 

eight from underserved populations impacted by the pandemic. 

Early Care and Education Wrap Around Grants

To learn more about our COVID-19 RESPONSE, and the many partners and donors who have 

supported these efforts, visit smifoundation.org/covid-19. Making a gift to SMIF’s general endowment 

supports these response efforts, including expenses related to the administration of these emergency 

funds and other essential response resources. Visit smifoundation.org/donate to make a gift.

TOTAL IMPACT: MORE THAN $12 MILLION

SMIF distributed 1,024 MN DEED Small Business Relief Grants to southern Minnesota 

businesses for a total of $10,240,000. The grants support businesses that have 

experienced financial hardship as a result of the crisis. Additionally, SMIF dispersed 50 

MN DEED Small Business Emergency Loans for a total of $1.2 million.

Small Business Relief Grants and Loans

Learn how you can help!

QUICKLY TO THE COVID-19 CRISIS

ENABLED US TO RESPONDYour Gift



In February 2020 when we were jumping-up-and-down-ecstatic to receive a Child Care Expansion Grant 

through SMIF, we didn't fully understand the true impact it would have on our ability to 

provide a safe, caring environment for children and families during one of the darkest 

times of our lives. Not only did the grant allow us to open an additional classroom during 

the pandemic so the children could learn safely in smaller group sizes, we also received 

critical support from the dedicated professionals at SMIF. Jeff Andrews helped us 

work through financial management and planning while John Katz went above and 

beyond to help us solve issues we were having with our online QuickBooks program. 

In this time of social distancing, it's this encouragement and generosity that helped our 

staff remain positive and know that their work was making a true difference in the lives 

of others. We cannot thank the donors and professionals of Southern Minnesota Initiative 

Foundation enough for your foresight, dedication and support throughout this pandemic." 

-CHRISTINA VALDEZ, DIRECTOR OF LISTOS PRESCHOOL AND CHILDCARE

I'm so grateful to Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation for their Grow A Farmer Assistance Grant. 

We've so far distributed funds to our members for things as diverse as installing internet on 

their farm, getting drone photography, starting up a tea business, buying COVID safety 

and health equipment and supplies, setting up an online fiber sale site, and more than 

that. It's been really interesting to see what the farmers are doing with these funds. 

We're all really dependent on each other when we're small entrepreneurs like this 

and the more healthy our local economy is we all do better. We've kind of adopted 

that model for ourselves, 'We all do better when we all do better.' From everyone in 

the Cannon River Sustainable Farming Association to Southern Minnesota Initiative 

Foundation, a big thank you for supporting us in our Cannon Valley Grown Project."

-GWEN ANDERSON, BOARD SECRETARY OF CANNON RIVER SUSTAINABLE 

FARMING ASSOCIATION

In April of 2020, Preston Area Community Foundation (PACF) discussed ways to help the local 

business community at the onset of the pandemic challenges. PACF reached out to the local EDA 

to develop a grant and loan program for local businesses to use for normal operating 

expenses. At this same time, SMIF made available a Community Foundation Relief 

Fund to be used by community foundations to address pandemic issues in their 

community. PACF reached out to the F & M Community Bank for support to take 

advantage of the $5,000 SMIF matching grant and generously, the bank agreed 

to underwrite the entire $5,000 PACF contribution. Thanks to SMIF and F & M 

Community Bank, the EDA loan and grant program funds increased to $30,000. 

To date, over $21,000 has been provided to local businesses with applications 

still being accepted.  Preston area businesses have been so grateful to receive this 

support during these challenging times. Our community stepped up this year and we 

are proud of the work PACF accomplished with the help of local organizations and SMIF."

- CHUCK AUG, BOARD MEMBER OF PRESTON AREA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION

MADE AN IMPACT ONYour Gift
“

“

“

THEIR STORIES



MINUTES 

REGULAR WASECA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

1. The regular Waseca City Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Srp at 7:00 p.m.

Councilmembers Present: Allan Rose Jeremy Conrath  

Daren Arndt Ted Conrath 

Mark Christiansen John Mansfield  

R.D. Srp 

Staff Present: Lee Mattson, City Manager 

Mike Anderson, Assistant to the City Manager 

Others Present:  Donald Hubschman, Resident 

Susan Jirele, Daughters of the American Revolution 

MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. A moment of silence was observed. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was recited.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. Motion was made by Arndt, seconded by Mansfield to approve the agenda as presented.

Motion carried 7-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

4. Mr. Hubschman approached the Council and asked them to be considerate and not rush to

decisions when spending local tax dollars.

REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

5. Proclamation: Daughters of the American Revolution. Mayor Srp read a proclamation declaring

September 17 thru September 24 as Constitution Week in the City of Waseca. Susan Jirele gave

out some information to the Council.

CONSENT AGENDA 

6. It was moved by Rose, seconded by J. Conrath to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The

motion carried 7-0 and included the following items:

A. Minutes –Regular City Council Meeting & Work Session, August 17 & 31 

B. Payroll & Expenditures  

C. Accepting Joan Mooney and Pete Harty’s resignations from their respective boards 

D. Appointing Molly Byron and Tom Sexton to their respective boards 

E. RCCA: Approval of Final Payment – 2021 Street Improvement Project 

F. Resolution 21-43: Setting a Public Hearing for Miscellaneous Assessments 

G. Approval of Garbage Hauler License: West Central Sanitation  

H. Approval of Contract Payment 

6.A.



ACTION AGENDA 

7 A. None 

REPORTS 

8 A. City Manager’s Report 

• Spire Credit Union has asked for Tax Increment Financing

• Dog Park construction is moving forward

• Gaiter Lake project is moving forward. Working on a Memorandum of Understanding

with Southwest MN Housing

• Working on the Purchase Agreement and Water Services Agreement with Conagra

B. Commission Reports 

Fire Relief 

• Had a fish fry raffle

HPC 

• Welcomed Molly Bryson to the Commission

• Talked about the HPC walking tour

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

9. Christiansen:

• Marching Classis is 9/17

 Srp 

• Took a tour of the Spire Credit Union Site

10. Closed Session Per M.S. 13.D.05 re: purchase or sale of real property

The Mayor sent the meeting into closed session at 7:45 p.m. and came out at 8:28 p.m. The City

Manager summarized that the Council is ok with him in entering discussions and investigating the

purchase of parcel numbers 170202720, 170203150, & 120203110.

ADJOURNMENT 

11. There being no further business to be brought before the Council, it was moved by Arndt,

seconded by J. Conrath, to adjourn the meeting at 7:23 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.

_____________________________________ 

R.D. SRP 

MAYOR  

_________________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 



MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 

The work session began at 6:00 p.m. 

Councilmembers Present: Allan Rose Roy Srp  

John Mansfield   Ted Conrath 

Mark Christiansen Jeremy Conrath 

Daren Arndt 

Staff Present: Lee Mattson, City Manager 

Mike Anderson, Assistant to the City Manager 

Alicia Fischer, Finance Director 

General Fund Budget 

Lee Mattson, City Manager, continued discussions from the previous week’s work session that included: 

• Insurance

• Workers Compensation

• Potential areas to increase or decrease services

• Their own thought about a not to exceed levy number at 4.26

The City Council then brought up some items for discussion that included: 

• Community Enhancement funding

• Overtime budgeting

• Downtown flower baskets

• Potential final not to exceed levy number for the 9/21/21 meeting

The City Manager and Finance Director answered questions from the Council. There being no further 

discussion and no action taken, the work session ended at 6:55 p.m.  

________________________________________ 

R.D. SRP 

MAYOR  

___________________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 



LIST OF EXPENDITURES

=======================================================================

City Council 0.00
Streets 28,000.18
Parks 14,919.53
Wastewater 8,841.35

Utility Administration 5,210.92

Utility Billing 7,610.68
Electric  14,203.77
Water 10,935.18
Building and Code Compliance 2,848.88
Police 62,880.99
Administration 7,823.30
Community Aides 0.00
Fire 8,003.19
Paid On Call Fire Department 2,864.10
Election Judges 0.00
Finance 9,363.96
Connections 2,546.33
Community Development 5,520.93
Engineering 16,902.64
Recreation 8,969.23
Econ Development 6,304.55

Total Gross Payroll 223,749.71  

*Less- Payroll Deductions (66,960.91)  

Net Payroll Cost 156,788.80$   

*These costs are included in Accounts Payable totals below

Accounts Payable

Expenditures dated:
September 3, 2021-September 17, 2021
Includes check #'s157166-157222
Bank ACH Withdrawals……………………………………...……………………..…………1,174,076.69       

 GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,330,865.49$  

September 7, 2021

6.B.









































RESOLUTION NO. 21-46 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

SETTING DATE AND CONTINUATION DATE FOR 

TRUTH-IN-TAXATION PUBLIC MEETING 

WHEREAS, the City is required by State law to select a public meeting date for public 

discussion of the City’s levy and budget and to select a continuation meeting date. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Waseca, 

Minnesota that the City’s Truth-In-Taxation Meeting for the 2022 Budget be set for: 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, December 21, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. (Continuation date if needed) 

This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and without publication. 

Adopted this 21st day of September, 2021. 

_______________________________ 

R. D. SRP 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

6.C.



Title: FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE 2021 CRACK SEAL & SEAL COAT PROJECT 

(CITY PROJECT NO. 2021-03) 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 

Number: 
6D 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Pay Request No. 1 – Final 

Originating 

Department: 

Engineering Presented By: Consent Agenda 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to Approve Pay Request No. 1 - Final for the 2021 

Crack Seal & Seal Coat Project (City Project No. 2021-03). 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Creating high quality community assets. 

BACKGROUND:  The work on the 2021 Crack Seal & Seal Coat Project has been completed and all work has 

been approved and accepted by staff.  The project is ready for final acceptance and final payment.  The total 

cost is $97,837.65 and the original contract amount was $92,614.25.  The contractor has provided all 

documentation required prior to release of the final payment. 

BUDGET IMPACT: This project was budgeted as part of the street and parks capital improvement plans.   

The airport’s portion was funded by their general maintenance budget.  Of the project total, $68,601.65 was for 

streets, $30,000 was for parks, and $2,400 was for the airport.  City staff completed the project design and 

inspection. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Waseca City Council accept the work and approve Pay 

Request No. 1 - Final for the 2021 Crack Seal & Seal Coat Project (City Project No. 2021-03). 

Request for City Council Action 



6E





1 

Memorandum of Understanding 

This memorandum of understanding (MOU) is made on ___________________, 2021 by and 
between the City of Waseca, 508 South State Street, Waseca, MN 56093 (the “City”) and Southwest 
Minnesota Housing Partnership, 2401 Broadway Ave, Slayton, MN 56172 (the “Developer”) and 
collectively known as the ‘Parties’.  

Recitals
A. The City is the owner in fee simple of an approximately 52.34-acre site of vacant agricultural 

farmland west of Gaiter Lake west of Gaiter Lake, identified on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 
“Subject Property”).  

B. The Parties desire to enter into this MOU to establish necessary cooperative arrangements that 
both Parties agree shall be necessary for the purpose of establishing and achieving various goals 
and objectives relating to the Developer’s acquisition and development of the Subject Property, 
generally consistent with the City’s Request for Proposals for the development of such property 
dated January 8, 2021. 

C. The City published a Request for Proposals for the development of the Subject Property on 
January 8th, 2021 (the “RFP”) in order to review developer offers in the context of the proposed 
end-use of the property. The Developer submitted its proposal in response to the RFP on 
February 11, 2021 (the “proposal”). The City informed the Developer of the acceptance of its 
proposal on February 22nd, 2021. 

D. The City has completed a Comprehensive Housing Needs Assessment for the City of Waseca in 
August 2021 per the request of the Developer. 

E. The Developer desires to develop the Subject Property generally in conformance with its 
proposal. In addition, the Developer will utilize best urban development practices and engage 
the broader community during phases of the project.  

F. The Parties agree to work together in good faith during all times when this MOU is in effect in 
order to promote collaboration and mutual support with regard to all matters related to the 
development of the Subject Property generally consistent with the City’s RFP and the 
Developer’s proposal.  

G. The Parties intend for this MOU to provide the framework and structure for any and all potential 
purchase, development and related agreements, which may be related to the Developer’s 
acquisition and development of the Subject Property (collectively, the “Definitive Agreements”). 

Developer Access 
1. The developer is authorized by the City to execute an Investigative Access Agreement with the

City for purposes of obtaining temporary access to that portion of the Subject Property 

6F



2 
 

described and depicted on Exhibit A that is owned by the City, for purposes of conducting 
investigations and studies into the feasibility of the proposed development on the property. 
Such investigations and studies shall be conducted at the developer’s expense in accordance 
with the terms of the form Investigative Access Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B, and 
may include, but need not be limited to, environmental testing, soil borings, and survey work.  
 

2. During the effective term of the City of Waseca Investigative Access Agreement, the developer 
shall confirm that its proposed development would be in compliance with local land use 
regulations and shall identify any necessary variances, conditional use permits, easements, or 
other development approvals (whether necessary at the local, state, or federal level) that may 
be necessary for the proposed development. 
 

3. City staff agrees not to actively solicit proposals for sale or development of the Subject Property 
or otherwise market such property through the term of this MOU.  

Parcel Transfer 
The Parties shall cooperatively determine what parcels or portions thereof within the Subject 

Property will be transferred to the Developer in the Definitive Agreements, and how the 
subdivision/platting of any such partial parcels shall be completed. Such transfer shall be by quit claim 
deed, subject to the requirements and restrictions of that certain Settlement Agreement and Mutual 
Release between the City, the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources, and Norlo, L.L.C., dated 
October 10, 2016, and the requirements and restrictions of any easements, including conservation 
easements, of record on the Subject Property, if applicable. 

 

Term of MOU 
The term of this MOU shall be until June 1st, 2022, by which time the Developer will have 

submitted a formal site plan and preliminary request for public assistance including phases of the 
development process for the Subject Property, and by which time the parties intend to have finalized 
and entered into the Definitive Agreements.   

 

Amendment of Cancellation of the MOU  
 This MOU may be amended or modified at any time in writing by mutual consent of both 
Parties. In addition, either Party may cancel this MOU at any time upon written notice to the other 
Party.  
 

General Provisions 
1. No contractual obligations of any kind are created by the approval and execution of this 

document by the City. The provisions and permissions contained herein are for the sole purpose 
of allowing the developer and the City to continue to evaluate the feasibility and possibility of 
the developer’s proposed development being further pursued. This document places no legal or 
continuing obligation upon either party to engage in any further conversation or negotiation 
regarding the Developer’s proposal. 

 



3 
 

2. The Developer understands and acknowledges that the City is subject to and will follow the 
requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act (Minn. Stat. Ch. 13) and Open 
Meeting Law (Minn. Stat. Ch. 13D) with respect to its treatment of this document and any future 
negotiations regarding the Subject Property. Consistent with these requirements, however, City 
staff will not voluntarily disclose the information contained herein to any third parties and will 
coordinate with the Developer in responding to any formal requests for data to which this 
document is responsive in order to take care that no private or nonpublic data is inadvertently 
disclosed. 

 
3. The proposed terms contained herein are intended to serve as the starting point for further 

negotiations that may result in the preparation of one or more of the “Definitive Agreement(s)” 
to be drafted by the City Attorney and approved by the City Council and executed by the City 
and Developer. The Parties do not intend to be bound by any agreement until the Definitive 
Agreement(s), or any of them, is fully executed, following approval of the same by the City 
Council, and no party may reasonably rely on any promise inconsistent with this paragraph. 

 

Limitation of Liability 
No rights or limitation of rights shall arise or be assumed between the Parties as a result of the 

terms of this MOU. 
 

Authorization and Execution 
 The signing of this MOU does not constitute a formal undertaking, and as such it simply intends 
that those signatories shall strive to reach, to the best of their abilities, the goals and objectives state in 
this MOU.  
 
 The MOU shall be signed by and shall be effective as of the date first written above.  
 
City of Waseca 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ Date: ______________________________________ 
 Lee Matson 

Its: City Manager 
 
 
 
Southwest Minnesota Housing Partnership 
 
 
By: _______________________________________ Date: ______________________________________ 
 Chad Adams 

Its: CEO  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 

 

Waseca County Parcel I.D. Nos. 170170850 and 170200850,  
excluding the eastern 150’ parallel to the ordinary high-water level of Gaiter Lake  

 
[Subject to further review and updating after survey]



 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
FORM OF INVESTIGATIVE ACCESS AGREEMENT 

 

 

 



Title: Ordinance No. 1095, Approving the Rezoning of two parcels in BENNETTS ADDITION 

from R-2 to B-1, for property currently located at 501 State St N in Waseca; and 

Resolution No. 21-47, Approving a Preliminary and Final Plat for the MCHS ED 

SUBDIVISION.  

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item Number: 
7A 

Action: MOTION 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting Documents: PC Memo 

Ordinance No. 1095 

EXHIBIT A 

Resolution No. 21-47 

EXHIBIT B, C 

Originating 

Department: 

Community Development Presented By: Bill Green 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Consider Ordinance No. 1095, Approving the Rezoning of Parcel 

17.152.0150 and 17.152.0110 from R-2 to B-1, for property currently located at 501 State 

St N in Waseca; and Resolution No. 21-47, Approving a Preliminary and Final Plat for the 

MCHS ED SUBDIVISION. 

BACKGROUND: Mayo Clinic Health Systems is the owner of the property. The applicant is requesting Rezoning of two 

parcels from R-2, Urban Residential District, to B-1, Central Business District, to set forth consistent zoning for the 

property, and Resolution No. 21-47, Approving a Preliminary and Final Plat for the MCHS ED SUBDIVISION. 

With the property located in proximity to other B-1 zoned properties, and the newly created MCHS ED SUBDIVISION, the 

Waseca Planning and Zoning Department supports this rezoning proposal.  

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the request on September 14, 2021. 

Public comments were given by Jackie Dickie, 517 2nd St NW and Jeff Dickie, 517 2nd St NW. They voiced concerns 

regarding the existing parking lot lighting, traffic noise, delivery truck noise, HVAC noise levels, and snow removal noise 

during the early morning hours.  

They also questioned how the proposed  additional parking and building addition would impact the neighbors in regard to 

the aforementioned concerns. 

The Dickie’s asked if an environmental impact study was done and were advised by staff that an environmental impact 

study was not required for this rezoning and preliminary and final plat request. They stated they would like one 

completed. 

Discussion followed regarding the concerns of existing and possible future issues with development, but not necessarily 

relevant to the current rezoning and plat request.  

The Planning Commission took no action to be forwarded to Council, and voted to table the Rezoning and Plats request 

with a request for further information on the public hearing items, by a vote of 4-0.  

Request for City Council Action 



With no action forwarded to the City Council by the Planning Commission, the City Council may act on the requests as 

presented. If no action is taken by the City Council at the September 21, 2021 meeting, the public hearing for the 

Preliminary and Final Plat will continue at the Planning Commission October 12, 2021 meeting. 

The City Council has 60 days from the date of complete application (August 6, 2021) to act on the Rezoning or the 

request will be granted (October 5, 2021). 

The City Council has 120 days from the date of complete application (August 25, 2021) to act on the Preliminary & Final 

Plat or the request will be granted (December 23, 2021).  

BUDGET IMPACT: None 

POLICY QUESTION: The City Council has the authority to approve Rezoning, Preliminary and Final Plats. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: None 

RECOMMENDATION:  

City Staff recommends a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1095, Approving the Rezoning of Parcel 17.152.0150 and 

17.152.0110 from R-2 to B-1, for property currently located at 501 State St N in Waseca. 

City Staff recommends a motion to adopt Resolution No. 21-47, Approving a Preliminary and Final Plat for the MCHS ED 

SUBDIVISION. 



PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Daren Arndt, Chair 
Waseca Planning Commission 

FROM: Bill Green 
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 

MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing-Action No. 21-14 – Preliminary Plat/Final Plat; Rezoning 

ATTACHMENTS: Application Narrative 
Site Location Map 
Site Photos 
 Rezoning Map 
City Zoning Map 
 Preliminary Plat 
 Final Plat 

APPLICANT 

Mayo Clinic Health Systems is the owner of the property.  A complete application was received on August 25, 2021. Final 
action, which is required within 60 days of the complete application date, must be taken by October 24, 2021.  

REQUEST 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Plat and Final Plat to combine twelve (12) existing parcels, and 
Rezoning for two of those parcels. The parcels are currently located in the BENNETTS SUBDIVISION, and BENNETS 
ADDITION. 

LOCATION 

The property is located at 501 State St N in the City of Waseca. 

CURRENT LAND USE 

The site is occupied with a hospital and clinic with parking areas. Surrounding land uses are R-2, Urban Residential 
District to the north, east and west, and B-1, Central Business District to the south.  

PROPOSED LAND USE 

The proposed use will remain, with a small building addition and added parking area. 

ZONING 

The parcels are currently zoned B-1, Central Business District, and R-2, Urban Residential District. Once platted, the new 
parcel(s) will be rezoned so all are B-1, Central Business District.  

ENVIRONMENTAL 

There are no environmental concerns at this time. 



ENGINEERING COMMENTS 

• The new plat shall show all existing easements, including any new easements as determined are required.

PUBLIC UTILITIES 

The site is currently served by public utilities, no new utilities are required. 

ZONING REVIEW 

On August 25, 2021, the City of Waseca received a complete application for a Subdivision and Rezoning for the 
properties located at 501 State St N in the City of Waseca  

The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Plat and Final Plat to combine twelve (12) existing parcels, and 
Rezoning for two of those parcels. The parcels are currently located in the BENNETTS SUBDIVISION, and BENNETS 
ADDITION. The site is occupied with a hospital and clinic with parking areas.  

Surrounding land uses are R-2, Urban Residential District to the north, east and west, and B-1, Central Business District to 
the south. Recently, three existing residential houses on north parcels were demolished as the property was acquired by 
Mayo Clinic Health Systems. The parcels are currently zoned B-1, Central Business District, and R-2, Urban Residential 
District. Once platted, the new parcel(s) will be rezoned so all are B-1, Central Business District. This will allow for the 
current and any future expansion to be done without variances.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

______ public comments were received.  
Upon discussion of use and conditions, there were comments of /objection/support to the requests. 

FINDINGS 

In the case of all subdivisions, the findings necessary for City Council approval of the preliminary plat and the final plat 
shall be as follows: 
   (A)   The proposed subdivision, including the design, shall be consistent with all applicable general and specialized city, 
county and regional plans, including, but not limited to the city's comprehensive plan, level of service (LOS) standards 
which may be established in the comprehensive plan for streets and other public facilities and with Ch. 154 of this code. 
   (B)   The physical characteristics of this site, including, but not limited to topography, soils, vegetation, susceptibility to 
erosion and siltation, susceptibility to flooding, water storage, drainage and retention, are such that the site is suitable for 
the type of development and uses contemplated. 
   (C)   The proposed subdivision shall adequately provide for water supply, storm water drainage and control, wastewater 
transportation, erosion control and all other services, facilities and improvements otherwise required herein. 
   (D)   The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements shall not adversely impact public health, safety and 
welfare, nor shall the proposed subdivision have an adverse impact on the reasonable development of the neighboring 
land. 
   (E)   The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements of record or with 
easements established by judgment of a court. 

Staff finds that the proposed plat, MCHS ED SUBDIVISION, meets all above criteria. This subdivision is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan.  



In the case of the Rezoning, the recommendations and decisions on the zoning amendment shall be based on consideration of 
the following area: 

1. Whether the proposed amendment corrects an error in the original text or map
2. Whether the proposed amendment addresses needs arising from a changing condition, trend, or fact affecting the

subject property and surrounding area
3. Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with achieving the goals and objectives outlined in the Comprehensive

Plan.

The property is zoned correctly for the use and is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the submitted plans and the findings in this report, staff recommends approval of the requested Preliminary Plat 
and Final Plat, and the Rezoning as submitted for the property located at 501 State St N, City of Waseca.  

REQUESTED ACTION 

Hold a public hearing on the Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, and Rezoning request and make a recommendation to be 
forwarded to the City Council for consideration at their September 21, 2021 meeting.   

















O

C l e a r
L a k e

_̂

NOTIFICATION
BOUNDARY

0 100 Feet

501 State St N
Waseca, MN

LOON
LAKE

2n
d 

St
 N

E

MAJOR SUBDIVISION
Mayo Health Clinic System - Waseca - 501 State St N - Waseca, MN 56093

6th Ave NE

This document is not a survey and should be used for reference purposes only.

PIN: R17.152.0160, R17.152.0150, R17.152.0140, R17.152.0110, R17.152.0100, R17.152.0090,
R17.152.0040, R17.152.0030, R17.152.0020, R17.152.0010, R17.153.0070, R17.153.0030

NOTIFICATION
BOUNDARY

4th Ave NE

4th Ave NW
2n

d 
St

 N
W R1

7.1
52

.01
60

R1
7.1

52
.01

40

R1
7.1

52
.01

50

R1
7.1

53
.00

70

R1
7.1

53
.00

30

R17.152.0090

R17.152.0110

R17.152.0100

R17.152.0030

R17.152.0040

R17.152.
0020

R17.152.
0010

St
at

e S
t N

 / M
N 

HW
Y 

13



The data represented on this document is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey, and is intended for reference purposes only. The
information presented has not been verified and neither the City of Waseca, nor it's employees or agents makes any representation to 
the accuracy of the features and data presented here within. This map was created through the use of several city, county, state, 
and federal sources. For specific information regarding this map or to report errors or omissions, contact the City of Waseca
Engineering Department. Map #C1001-1 Printed: 10/30/2020      

City
Waterpark

Waseca
High

School

Waseca
Intermediate

School

Northridge
Plaza

Woodville
Cemetery

Waseca
Federal
Prison

City
Hall

East
Annex

Courthouse

Hartley
Elemetery

Weather
Station

24

23

14

1
2

11

13

12

20
2119

456

1718

16

987

ßßª

ATOSENNIM

13

£¤14

345th Ave

14
5th

 S
t

11th Ave NE

2n
d S

t S
E

Johnson Ave SW

2n
d S

t N
E

2nd Ave SW

5th Ave SE

2nd Ave NW

10th St NW

2nd Ave SE

355th Ave SE

2n
d S

t S
W

4t h
St

NE

11
th 

St
 S

E

350th Ave University Dr

2n
d S

t N
W

12
3r

d S
t

355th Ave

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-M

B-1

R-2

R-2
R-2

R-2

R-2

R-2
R-2

R-2

R-2

R-2

R-2
R-2

R-2

R-3
R-3

R-3

I-2

I-2

I-2

B-4

B-4

B-4

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3

I-1

I-1
I-1

I-1

I-1

R-4

R-4

R-4

R-4

B-2

B-2

B-2

R-3

N 
St

ate
 S

t

S 
St

at
e 

St

E Elm Ave

W Elm Ave

Brown Ave

36
0t

h A
ve

HP

HP

HP

HP

HP

HP

HP

8th
 S

t N
E

5th
 S

t S
E

7th Ave NW

3r
d S

tN
E

8th Ave NE

Lake St NW
7th Ave NE

12
0th

 S
t

15th Ave NE

8th
 S

t S
E

4th
 S

t S
W

12
8th

 S
t

Lake St

375th Ave

Cl
ea

r L
ak

eD
r

11
0th

 S
t

Southview
Park

Oak
Park

Tink
Larson
Park

University
Park

Emerson
Park

Trowbridge
Park

Clear
Lake
Park

Loon
Lake
Park

Northwest
Park

Memorial
Park

Maplewood
Park

Northwest
Nature
Area

Veteran's
Park

Northeast
Park

Lakeside
Golf

Course

County
Fairground

Keisler's
Campground

4th Ave SE

13th Ave NE

9th
 S

t N
E

13th Ave NW

21st Ave NE

10
th 

St
 S

E

11
th 

St
 N

W

12th Ave SE

5th Ave Ct NW

10th Ave NW

4th Ave NE

4th
 S

t S
E

3r
d S

t S
E

14
3r

d S
t

3rd Ave NW

9th
 S

t S
E

16th Ave NW

6th
 S

t S
E

8th
 S

t N
W

6th
 C

ir S
E

6th Ave SW

7th
 S

t N
W

7th Ave SW

14th Ave SE

12th St SE

5th
 S

t N
W

11th Ave SE

14th Ave NE

2nd Ave NE

Hill N Dale Dr

3r
d S

t N
W

9th Ave SE

11th Ave NW

7th
 S

t S
E

24th Ave NE

20th Ave NE

6th
 S

t N
W

7th
 S

t N
E

3rd Ave NE

12th Ave NW

SummitLn

9th Ave NW

4th
S t

NW

366th Ave

3rd Ave SE

Idlewood Ave

Woodville Dr

7th Ave SE

6th Ave NE

7th
 S

t S
W

6th
 S

t S
W

Highland Dr

Hillcrest Ave

10th Ave SE

Elkdom Ave

Tim
be

r L

n

6th Ave NW

4th Ave NW

19th Ave NW

13th St SE5th Ave SW

22nd Ave NE

Hi
llto

pR
d

Bo
b

White
Ct NE

St
ate

 S
t N

Lakeview Ave

4th
 C

ir N
E

18th Ave NE

8th Ave NW

9th Ave NE

10th Ave NE

3r
d S

t S
W

5th
St

NE

14
th 

St
 N

W

6th Ave SE

6th
 S

t N
E

5th
 S

t S
W

5th Ave NE

10
th 

St
 N

E

12t h

St
Ci

r
SE

371st Ave

17th Ave NE

Bunker Dr

15th Ave SE

16th Ave SE

14th Ave NW

8th Ave SE

16th Ave NE

Se
rvi

ce
 R

d N
W

19th Ave NE

Weather Station 57a Rd

22nd Ave NW

139th St

Vis
ta 

Vi
lla

 C
t

Rice Lake Dr

Clear
Lake

Loon
Lake

Gaiter
Lake

0 0.5 1
Miles

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000
FeetZ

City Hall - 508 State Street South - Waseca, MN 56093
Phone 507.835.9700 - Fax 507.835.8871 - www.ci.waseca.mn.us

ZONING MAP with OVERLAY DISTRICTS

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

SH

SH

SH

ZONING

SH

SH

SH

SH

SH

Administrative

Section Line

City Boundary

Parcel Boundary

Park Boundary

Lakes

Trails

Commerical

B-1 Central Business District

B-2
Community Retail and
Service Business District

B-3
Neighborhood Transition
Business District

B-4
Regional Retail and
Service Business District
Industrial

I-1 Limited Industry District

I-2 Moderate Industry District

Residential

R-1
Suburban Residential 
District

R-2
Urban Residential 
District

R-3
Multi-Family Low &
Medium Density District

R-4
Multi-Family High
Density District

R-M
Manufactured Home
Community District
Overlays

SH Shoreland Overlay District

HP
Heritage Preservation
Overlay District

Downtown Historic District







ORDINANCE NO. 1095 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 

REZONING REAL PROPERTY TO B-1, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

WHEREAS Mayo Clinic Health Systems, owners of the properties, Parcel ID No. 17.152.0150 and 

17.152.0110, located at property currently addressed as 501 State St N in the City of Waseca, which is 

described as: 

The West 60 feet of Lots 5 and 6, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca 

And, 

The South 48 feet of Lot 3, except the West 10 feet thereof, Block 2,  

Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca 

And, 

WHEREAS the above described property is currently zoned R-2, Urban Residential District; and 

WHEREAS the above described property is currently occupied by a vacant lot and a parking area; and 

WHEREAS Mayo Clinic Health Systems is requesting rezoning of the above-described 

property to B-1, Central Business District; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission on the 14th day of September, 2021 held a public hearing on 

the proposed rezoning and took action to table the request until further information is available to 

rezone the above described property to B-1, Central Business District; and 

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Waseca has considered the action of the Planning 

Commission, and the effect of the proposed rezoning on the health, safety, and welfare of the 

occupants of the surrounding land, and on September 21, 2021, held a public hearing on the proposed 

rezoning, and all interested parties were provided an opportunity to provide input. 

NOW, THEREFORE The City Council of the City of Waseca has hereby determined that said 

rezoning will bear no negative impact nor will it be a detriment to neighborhood character, surrounding 

property values, or the general purpose and intent of the ordinance and the Comprehensive Plan, and 

does hereby determine and ordain this parcel will be zoned B-1, Central Business District, and the City 

of Waseca Zoning Map shall be amended as shown in the attached EXHIBIT A. 

This Ordinance shall take and be in force 10 days after its passage. 

Adopted this _____ day of ____________, 2021. 

____________________________ 

R.D. SRP

MAYOR

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 
Introduced:    September 14, 2021 
Adopted:        September 21, 2021 
Published:      September 29, 2021 

Effective:        October 1, 2021 



C l e a r
L a k e This document is not a survey and should be used for reference purposes only!

[0 50 10025
Feet

REZONING SITE MAP_̂
Owner: Mayo Health Clinic System - Waseca

Parcel: R17.152.0150 & R17.152.0110

YELLOW OUTLINED AREA
TO BE REZONED TO B1 -

CENTRAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT

R1
7.1

52
.01

50

St
at

e S
t N

 / M
N 

HW
Y 

13

2n
d 

St
 N

W

4th Ave NW

6th Ave NW

R17.152.0110

501 State St N
Waseca, MN

Mayo Health Clinic
System - Waseca

EXHIBIT A



RESOLUTION NO. 21-47 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

GRANTING APPROVAL FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAT AND FINAL PLAT TO MAYO 

CLINIC HEALTH SYTEMS FOR THE MCHS ED SUBDIVISION  

WHEREAS, application has been made to the City Council of the City of Waseca by Mayo 

Clinic Health Systems, owner of the property, for approval of a Preliminary Plat and Final Plat for the 

MCHS ED SUBDIVISION, located at 501 State St N in Waseca, which is described as: 

EXHIBIT B 

and, 

 EXHIBIT C 

WHEREAS, the Waseca Planning Commission held a public hearing on the request at its 

September 14, 2021 meeting, and all interested parties were provided an opportunity to comment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Waseca has considered the action of the Planning 

Commission, the consistency of the proposed project with the Waseca Zoning Ordinance, and the effect 

of the proposed use on the health, safety and welfare of the occupants of the surround land, existing and 

anticipated traffic conditions, and the effect of the proposed use on the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and 

the effect on property values in the surrounding area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Waseca makes the following findings of fact related 

to the proposed development and requested Preliminary Plat and Final Plat: 

1. The proposed subdivision shall be consistent with all applicable plans.

2. The physical characteristics of this site are suitable for the type of development and uses.

3. The proposed subdivision shall adequately provide for utilities, services and development

as required.

4. The design shall not adversely impact public health, safety and welfare, nor shall it have

an adverse impact on the reasonable development of neighboring land.

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements will not conflict with easements.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Waseca that this 

Preliminary Plat and Final Plat are hereby approved for the purpose as set forth subject to the following 

conditions: 

1. All costs associated with the lot reconfiguration shall be paid by the property owner.

2. The property shall not be subdivided at any time in the future without prior written

approval by the City of Waseca.

3. All development on the property shall comply with the Waseca Code of Ordinances and

State and Local Building codes.

Adopted this 21st day of September, 2021. 

___________________________________ 

R.D. SRP 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 



G
G G G G

UE UE UE UE

G

>>>>>>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

> I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I

IIIIII

I

G G G G
G G

>>
>>

>>

X

X

UU
U

U

U

U

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

U
E

I

U

U

BENCHMARK HYDRANT
TNFH = 1140.42

HYD

1/2" Iron
RLS 26748

1/2" Iron
RLS 15231

1/2" Iron

3/8" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Rebar

1/2" Iron
RLS 26748

1/2" Iron1" Iron

1/2" Rebar

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/8" Rebar

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

LOT  1

BLOCK     1

Utility Easement
Per Doc. No. 22747420

.0
0

44
.0

0

Ut
ilit

y 
Ea

se
m

en
t

Pe
r D

oc
. N

o.
 2

27
47

4

45.00

60

Parcel
171520150

60
Parcel

171520160

120

50

Parcel
171520140

48

Parcel
171520110

10

75.16

Parcel
171520090

Parcel
171520100

Parcel 171520030

4444

63

88

117

82

3090

Parcel
171520010

Parcel
171520020

Parcel
171520040

Parcel
171530070

Parcel
171530030

PR
O

PO
SED

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
2886 SQ

. FT.
FFE = 1135.35

Utility Easement
Per Doc. No. 221481 S0

0°
09

'0
3"

E 
  4

97
.5

7

N84°56'46"W   341.76

N
00

°1
2'

00
"W

   
58

9.
59

S0
0°

10
'3

2"
E

12
4.

28

N89°40'54"E   180.43

N89°35'14"E   160.38

23341 PPLAT

DATE
REVISION SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION BY

SHEET

TITLE

PROJECT

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
INC. AND MAY NOT BE USED, COPIED OR DUPLICATED 
THIS DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF I & S GROUP,

PROJECT NO.

FILE NAME

DESIGNED BY

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE

DRAWN BY

CLIENT PROJECT NO.

REVIEWED BY

FI
LE

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

:  
S:

\P
R

O
JE

C
TS

\2
30

00
 P

R
O

J\
23

30
0-

23
39

9\
23

34
1 

M
C

H
S 

ED
 E

XP
AN

SI
O

N
-W

AS
EC

A 
M

N
\2

33
41

 C
IV

IL
-S

U
R

VE
Y\

SU
R

VE
Y 

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

23
34

1 
PP

LA
T.

D
W

G

 1OF
1

-

8/25/21

19-23341

XX-XX SHEET TITLE

 300 PROJ. NO (no year) XX-XX

PRELIMINARY
PLAT

0

SCALE IN FEET

40 80

KH

---

---

EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
(Per Maschka, Riedy, Ries & Frentz O&E Report Dated August 6, 2021)

Parcel 171520150
The West 60 feet of Lots 5 and 6, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of
Waseca.

Parcel 171520160
The East 60 feet of the West 120 feet of Lots 5 and 6, Block 2, Bennetts
Addition to the City of Waseca.

Parcel 171520140
The East 50 feet of Lots 5 and 6 and the West 10 feet of Lots 3 and 4, Block 2,
Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

Parcel 171520110
The South 48 feet of Lot 3, except the West 10 feet thereof, Block 2, Bennetts
Addition to the City of Waseca.

Parcel 171520090
Lot 1, except the East 75.16 feet, and Lots 7 and 8, Block Two and the
adjacent North 33 feet of vacated 5th Avenue Northwest, Benaetts Addition to
the City of Waseca.

Parcel 171520100
Lot 2, and the East 75.16 feet of Lot 1, Block Two and the adjacent North 33
feet of vacated 5th Avenue Northwest, Bennetts Addition to the City of
Waseca.

Parcel 171520030
The East 44 feet of Lot 5, and the North 63 feet of the West 44 of the East 88
feet of Lot 5, and the North 11 feet of the East 44 feet of Lot 6, Block 1, Bennetts
Addition ALSO the West 82 feet of Lot 5, and the North 7 feet of
the West 82 feet of Lot 6, Block 1, Bennetts Addition.

AND

That part of the vacated 5th Avenue Northwest adjacent to Lot 5, Block 1,
Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca

Parcel 171520020
The North 30 feet of Lot 4, except the West 90 feet, Block 1, Bennetts
Addition and that part of the vacated 5th Avenue Northwest adjacent thereto.

Parcel 171520010
The West 90 feet of the North 30 feet of Lot 4, Block 1, Bennetts Addition
and that part of the vacated 5th Avenue Northwest adjacent thereto.

Parcel 171520040
The South 23 feet of the West 44 feet of the East 88 feet of Lot 5 and Lot 6,
except the North 11 feet of the East 44 feet and except the North 7 feet of the
West 82 feet, and that part of Lot 7 lying North of Fourth Avenue Northwest
(formerly Loon Lake Avenue), Block 1, Bennetts Addition to the City of
Waseca.

Parcel 171530070
The West 90 feet of Lot 11 and the West 55 feet of Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10,
Block 1, Subdivision of Block One Bennetts Addition to the Village, now
City, of Waseca, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the
Office of the County Recorder in and for said county and state.

Parcel 171530030
Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10, except the West 55 feet thereof, and Lot 11, except
the West 90 feet thereof, Block 1, Subdivision of Block One Bennetts
Addition to the Village, now City, of Waseca, according to the plat thereof on
file and of record in the Office of the County Recorder in and for said county
and state.

MCHS  ED  SUBDIVISION

Bituminous Surface

Concrete Surface

Existing Building

Sanitary Sewer Line

Storm Sewer Line

Water Line

Underground Gas Line

Underground Electric Line

Underground Utility Line

Building Canopy Or Deck Line

Fence

LEGEND

>

>>

I

G

UE

X

U

Iron Monument Found

Transformer

Utility Pedestal

Hydrant

Fire Department Connection

Water Valve

Manhole/Catch Basin

Roof Drain

Post

Sign

Coniferous Tree

Deciduous Tree

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY, PLAN, OR REPORT WAS
PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
MINNESOTA.

DATE LIC. NO. 43110

DANIEL L. STUEBER

MCHS ED
EXPANSION

Part of Blocks 1 & 2, Bennetts Addition & part of Block 1, Subdivision of
Bennetts Addition, City of Waseca, Waseca County, Minnesota.

OWNERS / DEVELOPERS:     SURVEYOR:
Mayo Clinic Health System - ISG
Southwest Minnesota 115 E. Hickory Street Suite 300
501 N State Street Mankato, MN 56001
Waseca, MN 56093 (507)-387-6651

AREA TABLE:
Lot 1 Block 1 = 186,349 sq. ft. - 4.278 acres

EXISTING PROPERTY:
ZONED: B-1 (Central Business District) & R-2 (Urban Residential District)

B-1 Building Setbacks R-2 Building Setbacks
Front - 0 feet Front - 25 feet
Side - 0 feet Side - 7 feet
Corner Side - 0 feet Corner Side - 20 feet
Rear - 0 feet Rear - 25 feet
From R District - 50 feet

BENCHMARK:
Top nut fire hydrant located at northeast corner of 6th Avenue NW and 2nd
Street NW.
Elev=1140.42 (NAVD88)

NOTES:
1. Planned improvements depicted hereon in an orange color are based on

preliminary plans prepared by ISG.
2. Existing conditions within the planned improvement area are not shown

hereon.

 Orientation of this bearing system is based upon
the east line of 2nd Street NW. Said line bears

North 00 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West.

EXHIBIT B



1/2" Iron
RLS 26748

1/2" Iron
RLS 15231

1/2" Iron

3/8" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Rebar

1/2" Iron
RLS 26748

1/2" Iron1" Iron

1/2" Rebar

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/4" Iron

3/8" Rebar

1/2" Iron

1/2" Iron

LOT  1

BLOCK     1

Utility Easement
Per Doc. No. 22747420

.0
0

44
.0

0

S0
0°

09
'0

3"
E 

  4
97

.5
7

Ut
ilit

y 
Ea

se
m

en
t

Pe
r D

oc
. N

o.
 2

27
47

4

45.00

N84°56'46"W   341.76

N
00

°1
2'

00
"W

   
58

9.
59

S0
0°

10
'3

2"
E

12
4.

28

N89°40'54"E   180.43

N89°35'14"E   160.38
60

60

120

50

48

10

75.16

4444

63

88

117

82

3090

Utility Easement
Per Doc. No. 221481

FINAL PLAT FOR REVIEW

MCHS  ED  SUBDIVISION

JO
B 

# 
23

34
1 

 D
AT

E:
 8

/2
5/

21

Iron Monument Found

Indicates 1/2" Dia. x 18"
Long Solid Iron Pipe Set
With Plastic Cap Marked By
ISG, License No. 43110 To Be
Set Before Time of Recording.

LEGEND

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Daniel L. Stueber, do hereby certify that this plat was prepared by me or under my direct supervision; that I am a duly
Licensed Land Surveyor in the State of Minnesota; that this plat is a correct representation of the boundary survey; that
all mathematical data and labels are correctly designated on this plat; that all monuments depicted on this plat have been
or, will be correctly set within one year; that all water boundaries and wet lands, as defined in Minnesota Statutes,
Section 505.01, Subd. 3, as of the date of this certificate are shown and labeled on this plat; and all public ways are
shown and labeled on this plat.

Dated this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____.

___________________________________________________________
Daniel L. Stueber, Licensed Land Surveyor
Minnesota License No. 43110

State of Minnesota
County of Blue Earth

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________________, 20_____ by Daniel L. Stueber, Licensed
Land Surveyor.

___________________________________________
Kent A. Hays
Notary Public, Minnesota
My Commission Expires Jan. 31, 2025

WASECA PLANNING COMMISSION

Be it known that at a meeting held on this _________________ day of _____________________, 20_____, the Planning

Commission of the City of Waseca did hereby review and approve this plat of MCHS ED SUBDIVISION.

__________________________________________ __________________________________________
Chair Person Secretary

CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA

This plat of MCHS ED SUBDIVISION, was approved and accepted by the City Council of the City of Waseca, Minnesota

at a regular meeting thereof held this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____, and said plat is in compliance

with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 505.03, Subd. 2.

__________________________________________ __________________________________________
Mayor Assistant to the City Manager

__________________________________________ __________________________________________
City Manager City Engineer

TITLE OPINION

I, _______________________________________,  Licensed Attorney, State of Minnesota, do hereby certify that the

owners as indicated hereon represent all ownership interest in the land encompassed by this plat, this

________________ day of _______________________, 20_____.

_______________________________________________
Licensed Attorney

COUNTY AUDITOR/TREASURER, WASECA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 505.021, Subd. 9, taxes payable for the year 20_____ on the land hereinbefore

described have been paid. Also pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 272.12, there are no delinquent taxes and

transfer entered this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____.

______________________________________
Waseca County Auditor/Treasurer

COUNTY RECORDER, WASECA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

I hereby certify that this plat of MCHS ED SUBDIVISION was filed in the office of the County Recorder for public record

on this _______ day of ___________________, 20_____, at _______ o'clock _____.M. and was duly filed in Book

_______ of Plats, page _______, as Document No. ______________________.

______________________________________
Waseca County Recorder

INSTRUMENT OF DEDICATION

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That Mayo Clinic Health System - Southwest Minnesota, a
Minnesota non-profit corporation, owner of the following described property:

The West 60 feet of Lots 5 and 6, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

The East 60 feet of the West 120 feet of Lots 5 and 6, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

The East 50 feet of Lots 5 and 6 and the West 10 feet of Lots 3 and 4, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of
Waseca.

AND

The South 48 feet of Lot 3, except the West 10 feet thereof, Block 2, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

Lot 1, except the East 75.16 feet, and Lots 7 and 8, Block Two and the adjacent North 33 feet of vacated 5th
Avenue Northwest, Benaetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

Lot 2, and the East 75.16 feet of Lot 1, Block Two and the adjacent North 33 feet of vacated 5th Avenue
Northwest, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

The East 44 feet of Lot 5, and the North 63 feet of the West 44 of the East 88 feet of Lot 5, and the North 11
feet of the East 44 feet of Lot 6, Block 1, Bennetts Addition ALSO the West 82 feet of Lot 5, and the North 7
feet of the West 82 feet of Lot 6, Block 1, Bennetts Addition.
AND
That part of the vacated 5th Avenue Northwest adjacent to Lot 5, Block 1,Bennetts Addition to the City of
Waseca

AND

The North 30 feet of Lot 4, except the West 90 feet, Block 1, Bennetts Addition and that part of the vacated 5th
Avenue Northwest adjacent thereto.

AND

The West 90 feet of the North 30 feet of Lot 4, Block 1, Bennetts Addition and that part of the vacated 5th
Avenue Northwest adjacent thereto.

AND

The South 23 feet of the West 44 feet of the East 88 feet of Lot 5 and Lot 6, except the North 11 feet of the
East 44 feet and except the North 7 feet of the West 82 feet, and that part of Lot 7 lying North of Fourth
Avenue Northwest (formerly Loon Lake Avenue), Block 1, Bennetts Addition to the City of Waseca.

AND

The West 90 feet of Lot 11 and the West 55 feet of Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10, Block 1, Subdivision of Block One
Bennetts Addition to the Village, now City, of Waseca, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the
Office of the County Recorder in and for said county and state.

AND

Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10, except the West 55 feet thereof, and Lot 11, except the West 90 feet thereof, Block 1,
Subdivision of Block One Bennetts Addition to the Village, now City, of Waseca, according to the plat thereof
on file and of record in the Office of the County Recorder in and for said county and state.

Has caused the same to be surveyed and platted as MCHS ED SUBDIVISION.

In witness whereof said Mayo Clinic Health System - Southwest Minnesota, a Minnesota non-profit corporation,
has caused these presents to be signed by its proper officer this _______ day of ___________________,
20_____.

Signed: Mayo Clinic Health System - Southwest Minnesota

__________________________________________
President

State of ____________________________

County of ____________________________

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______________________, 20_____ by

________________________________, President, of Mayo Clinic Health System - Southwest Minnesota, a

Minnesota non-profit corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

__________________________________________(sign)

__________________________________________(print)

Notary Public ___________________________

My Commission Expires ________________

0

SCALE IN FEET

40 80

 Orientation of this bearing system is based upon
the east line of 2nd Street NW. Said line bears

North 00 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds West.

SE 1/4 SEC. 7, TWP. 107, RGE. 22

S
IT

E

VICINITY MAP
(NOT TO SCALE)

Waseca County, Minnesota

N
NW 1/

4

SE 1/
4 NE 1/

4

SE 1/
4

SE 1/
4

SE 1/
4

SW 1/
4

SE 1/
4

6th Ave
NW

4th Ave
NW

2n
d 

St
 N

W

St
at

e 
St

 N

EXHIBIT C



Title: Ordinance No. 1096: An Ordinance of the Waseca City Council Amending 

Chapter 150 of the Code of Ordinances. 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

PC Memo 

Ordinance No. 1096 

Originating 

Department: 

Community Development Presented By: Bill Green 

Approved by City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1096, Amending Chapter 150 

of the Waseca City Code of Ordinances 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:  

This text amendment will bring the City of Waseca Code of Ordinances for Accessory structures in line with the MN 

State Building Code, as well as surrounding communities. This amendment has been selected and brought forth to 

provide clarity within the Ordinance, and to reduce the cost to City residents. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the Text Amendment request on September 14, 2021. The Planning 

Commission voted 4-0 recommending approval to the City Council.  

Due to the length of the Text Amendment changes, a summary will be published in the newspaper, with the complete 

text available at Waseca City Hall, 508 State St S, Waseca MN. 

BUDGET IMPACT: None 

POLICY QUESTION: The City Council has the authority to approve Text Amendments. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to adopt Ordinance 1096; Approving Text Amendments to Chapter 150 of the 

Waseca City Code of Ordinances. 

Request for City Council Action 

7A



ORDINANCE NO. 1096 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 150: BUILDING REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, Chapter 150 of the Waseca Code of Ordinances provides zoning provisions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Waseca does hereby ordain that the amendments to Chapter 150 of the 
Waseca Code of Ordinances as shown here-in are hereby approved and modified. The modification only amends 
the specified codes, the remainder of the Ordinance shall remain as previously adopted. 

SECTION 1. Chapter 150: BUILDING REGULATIONS of the Waseca Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended as follows, underlined text is being added and strikeout text is being deleted: 

150.04 ORGANIZATION. 

(D) (1) Hereafter, no person shall construct, alter, wreck, or move any kind of structure or building or part 

thereof without first securing a building permit therefore; provided no permit shall be necessary for the 

construction, reconstruction, or alteration of a building where the building is less than 120 200 square feet in 

size.  In the shoreland overlay zoning district, a building permit shall be required for the construction or 

installation of any building or structure, regardless of size, for the installation of sewage treatment systems, 

and for those grading and filling activities not exempted by §§ 154.045 through 154.060.  Application for a 

building permit shall be made to the Building Official or his or her designee on the forms provided by the 

city.  The application shall include sufficient use and that, in cases where municipal sewer does not yet serve 

a site, a compliant sewage treatment system will be provided. Permits shall stipulate that any identified 

nonconforming sewage treatment system, as defined by § 154.058, shall be reconstructed or replaced in 

accordance with the provisions contained therein. 

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take and be in force 10 days after its passage 

ADOPTED this ______day of ___________ 2021. 

___________________________________ 

R. D. SRP 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

Introduced:    September 14, 2021 
Adopted:    September 21, 2021 

Published:  September 29, 2021 
Effective:    October 1, 2021 



Title: Ordinance No. 1097: An Ordinance of the Waseca City Council Amending 

Chapter 151 of the Code of Ordinances. 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

PC Memo 

Ordinance No. 1097 

Originating 

Department: 

Community Development Presented By: Bill Green 

Approved by City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1097, Amending Chapter 151 

of the Waseca City Code of Ordinances 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:  

These amendments have been selected and brought forth to provide clarity within the Ordinance, to promote 

development, bring the current code into compliance with ADA regulations, and to reduce the need for common 

variances. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the Text Amendment request on September 14, 2021. The Planning 

Commission voted 4-0 recommending approval to the City Council.  

Due to the length of the Text Amendment changes, a summary will be published in the newspaper, with the complete 

text available at Waseca City Hall, 508 State St S, Waseca MN. 

BUDGET IMPACT: None 

POLICY QUESTION: The City Council has the authority to approve Text Amendments. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1097; Approving Text Amendments to Chapter 151 of 

the Waseca City Code of Ordinances. 

Request for City Council Action 

7A



ORDINANCE NO. 1097 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151: SUBDIVISIONS 

WHEREAS, Chapter 151 of the Waseca Code of Ordinances provides zoning provisions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Waseca does hereby ordain that the amendments to Chapter 151 of the 
Waseca Code of Ordinances as shown here-in are hereby approved and modified. The modification only amends 
the specified codes, the remainder of the Ordinance shall remain as previously adopted. 

SECTION 1. Chapter 151: Subdivisions of the Waseca Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows, 

underlined text is being added and strikeout text is being deleted: 

151.003  SCOPE. 

   (A)   This chapter governs plats and subdivision of lands subject to its provisions. 

   (B)   The City Council may, by resolution, cause this chapter to apply to a specified portion of the 

unincorporated area lying within two miles of the city borders, as provided for by M.S. § 462.358, as it may 

be amended from time to time. 

   (C)   (1)   Any unplatted property shall be platted in accordance with the provisions and standards of this 

chapter before it is developed. For the purposes of this chapter, the term DEVELOPED is defined as any 

construction activity requiring the installation of public improvement.  or any construction activity requiring 

a building permit with the exception of permits for: 

         (a)   Decks; 

         (b)   Driveways; 

         (c)   Fences; 

         (d)   Accessory structures, under 700 square feet; 

       (e)   Residential additions, under 1,500 square feet; and 

         (f)   Commercial and industrial expansions, under 10,000 square feet. 

      (2)   No expansion or addition to a structure that changes the use, or is intended to change the use of a 

property, shall be allowed. 



151.047 SIDEWALKS. 

   (A)   Sidewalks shall be included within the dedicated non-pavement right-of-way on at least one side of 

all streets.  This provision shall not apply to cul-de-sacs, except as a link to trails or other sidewalks as 

required by the Waseca City Council.  A recommendation as to the location of sidewalks within areas to be 

platted shall be provided by the Community Development Director.  These recommendations will be 

included in plans provided to the Waseca City Council with the preliminary plat. 

   (B)   Classification width. 

      (1)   Residential districts, five feet; and 

         (a)   Residential non-collector and non-arterial (minor and major), four feet; and 

         (b)   Residential collector and arterial (minor and major), five feet. 

      (2)   Commercial districts, eight feet; and 

      (3)   Industrial districts, five feet. 

   (C)   Sidewalks shall slope ¼ inch per foot 1.5% away from the property line (cross slope) and the profile 

grade running slope shall not exceed 5% 8%. 

   (D)   Sidewalks shall be a minimum of four-inch-thick concrete and placed on a four-inch gravel base. 

   (E)   Sidewalks shall be placed in the public right-of-way at the property line or within a public sidewalk 

easement.  

151.100 MINOR SUBDIVISIONS. 

   (E) If the City Planner is to grant administrative approval for a proposed minor subdivision, each of the 

provisions shown below must be met: 

1. The proposed subdivision will not result in more than three lots.

2. Each lot shall have no fewer than four sides and no more than five eight sides.

3. All necessary utility and drainage easements are provided for.

4. The property to be divided will not require the dedication of public right-of-way for purposes of

gaining access to the property. 

5. The property has not been divided through the provisions of this section within the previous five

years. 

6. The subdivision meets all design standards as specified elsewhere in this chapter.



SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take and be in force 10 days after its passage 

ADOPTED this ______day of ___________ 2021. 

___________________________________ 

R. D. SRP 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

Introduced:    September 14, 2021 
Adopted:    September 21, 2021 
Published:  September 29, 2021 
Effective:    October 1, 2021 



Title: Ordinance No. 1098: An Ordinance of the Waseca City Council Amending 

Chapter 154 of the Code of Ordinances. 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

PC Memo 

Ordinance No. 1098 

Originating 

Department: 

Community Development Presented By: Bill Green 

Approved by City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1098, Amending Chapter 154 

of the Waseca City Code of Ordinances 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:  

In January of 2016, the City adopted changes to the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 154: Zoning. In the last five years 

City Staff has identified items to be updated, as well as new code items to be added. These amendments have been 

selected and brought forth to provide clarity within the Ordinance, and to reduce the need for common variances. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the Text Amendment request on September 14, 2021. The Planning 

Commission voted 3-1 recommending approval on Ordinance 154.150 (B) (1); and 4-0 recommending approval on 

the remaining Ordinances, to the City Council.  

Due to the length of the Text Amendment changes, a summary will be published in the newspaper, with the complete 

text available at Waseca City Hall, 508 State St S, Waseca MN. 

BUDGET IMPACT: None 

POLICY QUESTION: The City Council has the authority to approve Text Amendments. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1098; Approving Text Amendments to Chapter 154 of 

the Waseca City Code of Ordinances. 

Request for City Council Action 

7A



ORDINANCE NO. 1098 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 154: ZONING 

WHEREAS, Chapter 154 of the Waseca Code of Ordinances provides zoning provisions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Waseca does hereby ordain that the amendments to Chapter 154 of the 
Waseca Code of Ordinances as shown here-in are hereby approved and modified. The modification only amends 
the specified codes, the remainder of the Ordinance shall remain as previously adopted. 

SECTION 1. Chapter 154: ZONING of the Waseca Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows, 

underlined text is being added and strikeout text is being deleted: 

SECTION 154.029 PRINCIPAL AND ACCESSORY USES IN THE INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS 

Table 6-1: Summary of the Principal Permitted and Conditional Land Uses in the Industrial Districts. 

P: Permitted    C: Conditional      --: Not allowed 

Land Uses Zoning Districts Specific 

Development 

Requirements 
I-1 I-2 

Industrial Uses 

Alcohol distillation -- C 

Animal veterinary clinics P P 

Beer brewing P P State regulation 

Bulk storage of liquid or grain -- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Cellular telephone relay facilities C C §§ 154.109 - 154.144 

Construction trades shops P P 

Distillation of bone, coal, tar, petroleum, grain or wood 

alcohol 

-- -- 

Drugs and pharmaceutical manufacturing C P 

Fertilizer manufacturing, compost or storage -- -- 

Food manufacturing except meat and rendering -- P 

Hazardous liquid storage C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Laboratories P P 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


Manufacturing, non-hazardous materials, products or 

emissions 

P P 

Manufacturing, potentially hazardous materials, products 

or emissions 

-- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Manufacturing of products from stone, clay or concrete -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Manufacturing or bulk storage of explosives -- -- 

Offices P P 

Outdoor storage of materials or products -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Processing of garbage, offal, dead animals, refuse or 

rancid fats 

-- -- 

Recycling of residential, commercial or industrial wastes -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle salvage -- -- 

Warehousing and logistics -- P 

Waste recycling facility -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Waste transfer facility -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Wholesale trade P P 

Commercial Uses 

Animal clinics P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Automobile renting and leasing P P 

Business services P P 

Communication stations and broadcasting P P 

Day care, commercial C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Electrical and electronic repair P P 

Fitness centers C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Industrial product sales P P 

Industrial services P P 

Kennel, commercial P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


Laundry services and tailoring P P 

Plant nurseries, lawn and garden supply stores P P 

Restaurants C C 

Self-service storage with outdoor storage -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Self-service storage without outdoor storage P P 

Salvage yard -- -- 

Trade schools P P 

Vehicle repair, mechanical P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle repair, body -- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle sales, new or used autos, light trucks, boats, 

motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles, heavy trucks, 

recreational vehicles 

-- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Public and semi-public uses 

Essential services P P 

Public administration or utility buildings P P 

Public works yards and storage buildings -- C 

154.053  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

 (B)   The following specific standards and setback requirements shall be followed in all shoreland districts. 

 (12)   The lowest floor must be placed at least three feet above the highest known water level, or three feet 

above the ordinary high water level, whichever is higher, except as otherwise provided in this section. 

         (a)   Water-oriented structures may have the lowest floor placed lower than the elevation specified 

herein if the structure is constructed of flood-resistant materials to the elevation, electrical and mechanical 

equipment is placed above the elevation, and if long duration flooding is anticipated, the structure is built to 

withstand ice action and wind-driven waves and debris. 

         (b)   On lots in the Pondview of Waseca subdivision, the lowest floor must be placed at least one foot 

above the highest known water level of 1,129.38 1131.183 feet. 1131.183 NGVD88 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


154.150 (B) (1): ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, GENERALLY. 

(B)   Residential districts. 

      (1)   Accessory structures 120 square feet or larger, including detached garages: Accessory Structures 

exceeding 200 square feet require a building permit and zoning review together with a site plan.  

         (a)    The exterior materials and color of each accessory building exceeding 200 square feet shall be 

consistent with the principal building. 

         (b)   Detached garages shall not cover more than 10% of the lot area.  

  (c)   No accessory building shall have an access door more than 12 feet tall. 

         (d)   All Accessory Structures 200 square feet or less require a zoning review with the provision of a 

site plan. 

154.156  EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT. 

 (B)   General requirements. 

      (2)   Erosion and sedimentation control. 

         (a)   Every applicant for a building permit or subdivision approval to disturb 500 square feet of  

land or 120 200 square feet for a building must adhere to the soil erosion and sedimentation control 

standards and specifications in strict conformance to the provisions of this section and the city’s engineering 

design standards for stormwater management.  

154.150 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, GENERALLY. 

(B) Residential Districts 

(5)   Increase in wall height. The maximum side wall height for a detached garage in a residential district 

may be increased up to 20 feet 12 feet, provided that the maximum building height provision is not 

exceeded, and that an additional setback of two feet is provided from side and rear lot lines for each 

additional foot of side wall height over nine feet.  Side wall height is measured from the top of the concrete 

slab to the top of the top plate. 

154.159 LANDSCAPING, SCREENING AND FENCES 

(L) 

(4) Seasonal / Snow Fencing  

(a) The allowed duration for putting up a seasonal or snow fence is between November 1 and March 31 

of every year.  



154.161 PARKING REQUIREMENTS, OFF-STREET. 

 (K)   Design requirements. 

(1) Site plan. All applications for site plan review shall depict, at a measurable scale, the location and 

arrangement of vehicle parking, curb cuts, driveways, and walkways. A Zoning permit and a site 

plan shall be submitted for secondary parking. Refer also to § 154.178, Site Plan Review, in the 

Application Reviews and Procedures chapter of this code. 

154.162 PARKING IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS, SUPPLEMENTARY. 

The following parking regulations apply to the R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4 zoning districts as well as to housing 

located in non-residential zoning districts.  These regulations supplement the off-street parking requirements 

of § 154.161, Parking Requirements, Off-Street. 

   (A) General residential parking requirements. 

      (1) Off street parking of any type of vehicle shall be provided in accordance with § 154.161 titled 

Parking Requirements, Off-Street. 

      (2) No more than four vehicles or one per licensed driver residing on the premises, whichever is more, 

may be parked or stored outside on the lot. For the purpose of this clause, a vehicle must be currently 

licensed and operable, have a capacity of nine or fewer passengers or be a truck not exceeding one ton 

capacity. 

      (3) Exterior secondary vehicle parking and storage shall be confined to surfaces paved with concrete, 

rock, asphalt, or pavers. All new or expanded parking shall meet this standard.  

      (4) All new construction, including garages, garage additions and parking or vehicle storage areas shall 

be served by an access drive made of concrete, asphalt, or pavers. 

      (5)   One-, two- or three-family residences: 

         (a)   Parking areas and circulation drives shall be set back at least five feet from any side or rear lot 

line. 

       (b)   Parking in the front yard shall not be located between the living space of the house and the street. 

         (c)   Front yard parking beyond the width of the garage (that is, in the side yard) shall be set back from 

the front property line at least ten feet. 

   (B)   Parking or storage of commercial-use vehicles, inoperable vehicles, unlicensed vehicles and vehicle 

parts. 

      (1)   Inoperable vehicles, unlicensed vehicle or vehicle parts shall not be stored outdoors, whether on a 

lot or on a street, in a residential district. 

      (2)   One commercial vehicle of Class 1, 2 or 3 may be parked or stored outside, whether on a lot or on a 

street, in a residential district. Class 1, 2 and 3 vehicles are defined by the U.S. Department of 

Transportation.  

   (C)   Parking or storage of recreational vehicles, boats, trailers, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles and 

similar vehicles. 



      (1)   Recreational vehicles, boats, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles, special purpose trailers or other 

vehicles designed or used for off-road purposes may be parked or stored in a garage or other building or 

may be parked or stored outdoors as follows:  

         (a)   No more than two such vehicles, not more than one of which is a recreational vehicle, shall be 

parked or stored outdoors on each lot.  Such lot must be occupied by a principal structure, and such parking 

or storage shall occur only on asphalt, concrete, rock, or pavers but not in a space that is designated as 

required parking for the principal use.  A trailer with one or more vehicles on it shall be considered one 

vehicle. 

         (b)   Any such vehicle shall not be parked or stored within 5 feet of a side or rear lot line.  Vehicles 

may be parked within the required front setback provided vehicles are parked on an approved asphalt, 

concrete, rock, or pavers and shall not be within 10 feet of the front yard property line. 

         (c)   Such vehicles shall not be parked between the living space of the house and the street. 

         (d)   Recreational vehicles shall not be used as living or sleeping quarters for more than 14 days per 

year. 

(D) Secondary Parking 

      (1) Secondary Parking areas shall be paved with rocks and the perimeter barrier of the parking area shall 

be made of a minimum 2x material (Nominal size) secured to the ground and a minimum height which shall 

be 2 inches higher than the finished rock height.  

      (2) The required minimum setbacks for secondary parking shall be the same as the setbacks for parking 

in each district, including General and Specific Development Requirements for this chapter. 

      (3) A Right-of-Way permit is required for any work proposed on the City Right-of-Way. 

(4) A Zoning permit and a site plan shall be submitted for review for secondary parking.  

(5) EXAMPLE: Frame the outline of the area with 2x3 landscape timbers to the desired height, 

anchored into the ground with re-rod, and fill the area with crushed rock. See Figure 15-2. 

Figure 15-2: 



SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take and be in force 10 days after its passage 

ADOPTED this ______day of ___________ 2021. 

___________________________________ 

R. D. SRP 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

Introduced:    September 14, 2021 
Adopted:    September 21, 2021 

Published:  September 29, 2021 
Effective:    October 1, 2021 



1 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Daren Arndt, Chair 

Waseca Planning Commission 

FROM: Bill Green 

Planning and Zoning Coordinator 

Felix Danso Asante 

Community Development Intern 

MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing-Action No. 21-15 – Zoning Text Amendments 

ATTACHMENTS: Existing zoning code sections to be amended  

REQUEST 

Waseca Staff request that the Planning Commission consider the proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments. These 

amendments have been selected and brought forth to provide clarity within the Ordinance. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #1 

Section 150.04: ORGANIZATION  

(D) (1) Hereafter, no person shall construct, alter, wreck, or move any kind of structure or building or part 

thereof without first securing a building permit therefore; provided no permit shall be necessary for the 

construction, reconstruction, or alteration of a building where the building is less than 120 200 square feet in 

size.  In the shoreland overlay zoning district, a building permit shall be required for the construction or 

installation of any building or structure, regardless of size, for the installation of sewage treatment systems, and 

for those grading and filling activities not exempted by §§ 154.045 through 154.060.  Application for a building 

permit shall be made to the Building Official or his or her designee on the forms provided by the city.  The 

application shall include sufficient use and that, in cases where municipal sewer does not yet serve a site, a 

compliant sewage treatment system will be provided. Permits shall stipulate that any identified nonconforming 

sewage treatment system, as defined by § 154.058, shall be reconstructed or replaced in accordance with the 

provisions contained therein. 

Reasoning:  

The State of Minnesota Building Code states that accessory structures exceeding 200 square feet require a 

permit.  



2 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #2 

151: SUBDIVISIONS 

151.003  SCOPE. 

   (A)   This chapter governs plats and subdivision of lands subject to its provisions. 

   (B)   The City Council may, by resolution, cause this chapter to apply to a specified portion of the 

unincorporated area lying within two miles of the city borders, as provided for by M.S. § 462.358, as it may be 

amended from time to time. 

   (C)   (1)   Any unplatted property shall be platted in accordance with the provisions and standards of this 

chapter before it is developed. For the purposes of this chapter, the term DEVELOPED is defined as any 

construction activity requiring the installation of public improvement.  or any construction activity requiring a 

building permit with the exception of permits for: 

       (a)   Decks; 

         (b)   Driveways; 

         (c)   Fences; 

         (d)   Accessory structures, under 700 square feet; 

         (e)   Residential additions, under 1,500 square feet; and 

         (f)   Commercial and industrial expansions, under 10,000 square feet. 

      (2)   No expansion or addition to a structure that changes the use, or is intended to change the use of a 

property, shall be allowed. 

Reasoning 

Existing unplatted properties within the City are hindered from possible development and improvements by this 

restriction. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #3 

151.047 SIDEWALKS. 

   (A)   Sidewalks shall be included within the dedicated non-pavement right-of-way on at least one side of all 

streets.  This provision shall not apply to cul-de-sacs, except as a link to trails or other sidewalks as required by 

the Waseca City Council.  A recommendation as to the location of sidewalks within areas to be platted shall be 

provided by the Community Development Director.  These recommendations will be included in plans provided 

to the Waseca City Council with the preliminary plat. 

   (B)   Classification width. 

      (1)   Residential districts, five (5) feet; and 

         (a)   Residential non-collector and non-arterial (minor and major), four feet; and 

         (b)   Residential collector and arterial (minor and major), five feet. 

      (2)   Commercial districts, eight feet; and 

      (3)   Industrial districts, five feet. 

   (C)   Sidewalks shall slope ¼ inch per foot 1.5% away from the property line (cross slope) and the profile 

grade running slope shall not exceed 5% 8%. 

   (D)   Sidewalks shall be a minimum of four-inch-thick concrete and placed on a four-inch gravel base. 

   (E)   Sidewalks shall be placed in the public right-of-way at the property line or within a public sidewalk 

easement.  

Reasoning: 

City Staff is recommending these changes to meet ADA requirements. 



3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #4 

151.100 MINOR SUBDIVISIONS. 

   (E) If the City Planner is to grant administrative approval for a proposed minor subdivision, each of the 

provisions shown below must be met: 

1. The proposed subdivision will not result in more than three lots.

2. Each lot shall have no fewer than four sides and no more than five eight (8) sides.

3. All necessary utility and drainage easements are provided for.

4. The property to be divided will not require the dedication of public right-of-way for purposes of gaining

access to the property.

5. The property has not been divided through the provisions of this section within the previous five years.

6. The subdivision meets all design standards as specified elsewhere in this chapter.

Reasoning 

Half of the minor subdivision applications from 2017 to 2021 have required variances with respect to the 

number of sides of the lot. Exceeding the allowed number of five (5) sides with 6, 7, or 8 sides typically. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #5 

SECTION 154.029 (H) Table 6-1: Summary of the Principal Permitted and Conditional Land Uses in the 

Industrial Districts. 

P: Permitted    C: Conditional      --: Not allowed 

Land Uses Zoning 

Districts 

Specific 

Development 

Requirements I-1 I-2 

Industrial Uses 

Alcohol distillation -- C 

Animal veterinary clinics P P 

Beer brewing P P State regulation 

Bulk storage of liquid or grain -- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Cellular telephone relay facilities C C §§ 154.109 - 154.144 

Construction trades shops P P 

Distillation of bone, coal, tar, petroleum, grain or wood 

alcohol 

-- -- 

Drugs and pharmaceutical manufacturing C P 

Fertilizer manufacturing, compost or storage -- -- 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


4 

Food manufacturing except meat and rendering -- P 

Hazardous liquid storage C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Laboratories P P 

Manufacturing, non-hazardous materials, products or 

emissions 

P P 

Manufacturing, potentially hazardous materials, products 

or emissions 

-- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Manufacturing of products from stone, clay or concrete -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Manufacturing or bulk storage of explosives -- -- 

Offices P P 

Outdoor storage of materials or products -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Processing of garbage, offal, dead animals, refuse or 

rancid fats 

-- -- 

Recycling of residential, commercial or industrial wastes -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle salvage -- -- 

Warehousing and logistics -- P 

Waste recycling facility -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Waste transfer facility -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Wholesale trade P P 

Commercial Uses 

Animal clinics P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Automobile renting and leasing P P 

Business services P P 

Communication stations and broadcasting P P 

Day care, commercial C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Electrical and electronic repair P P 

Fitness centers C C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


5 

Industrial product sales P P 

Industrial services P P 

Kennel, commercial P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Laundry services and tailoring P P 

Plant nurseries, lawn and garden supply stores P P 

Restaurants C C 

Self-service storage with outdoor storage -- C §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Self-service storage without outdoor storage P P 

Salvage yard -- -- 

Trade schools P P 

Vehicle repair, mechanical P P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle repair, body -- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Vehicle sales, new or used autos, light trucks, boats, 

motorcycles or all-terrain vehicles, heavy trucks, 

recreational vehicles 

-- P §§ 154.109 – 154.143 

§§ 154.109 – 154.144 

Public and semi-public uses 

Essential services P P 

Public administration or utility buildings P P 

Public works yards and storage buildings -- C 

Reasoning: City staff would like to add the Conditional Use of Cellular telephone relay facilities to the 

Principal Land Uses in the Industrial districts to allow for the development of industrial properties. Add sales of 

heavy truck and recreational vehicles to a permitted use in I-2. Also, correcting typographical errors.  

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/waseca/latest/waseca_mn/0-0-0-13231#JD_154.109


6 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #6 

154.053  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

 (B)   The following specific standards and setback requirements shall be followed in all shoreland districts. 

 (12)   The lowest floor must be placed at least three feet above the highest known water level, or three feet 

above the ordinary high water level, whichever is higher, except as otherwise provided in this section. 

     (a)   Water-oriented structures may have the lowest floor placed lower than the elevation specified herein 

if the structure is constructed of flood-resistant materials to the elevation, electrical and mechanical equipment 

is placed above the elevation, and if long duration flooding is anticipated, the structure is built to withstand ice 

action and wind-driven waves and debris. 

         (b)   On lots in the Pondview of Waseca subdivision, the lowest floor must be placed at least one foot 

above the highest known water level of 1,129.38 1131.183 feet. 1131.183 NGVD88 

Reasoning: 

The Minnesota Department of natural Resources has updated the Highest Know Water Level for Gaiter Lake 

from the 2015 event. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #7 

Section 154.150 (B) (1): ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, GENERALLY. 

(B)   Residential districts. 

      (1)   Accessory structures 120 square feet or larger, including detached garages: Accessory Structures 

exceeding 200 square feet require a building permit and zoning review together with a site plan.  

         (a)    The exterior materials and color of each accessory building exceeding 200 square feet shall be 

consistent with the principal building. 

         (b)   Detached garages shall not cover more than 10% of the lot area.  

         (c)   No accessory building shall have an access door more than 12 feet tall. 

         (d)   All Accessory Structures 200 square feet or less require a zoning review with the provision of a site 

plan. 

Reasoning:  

The State of Minnesota Building Code states that accessory structures exceeding 200 square feet require a 

permit. Following are the detached accessory structure size for a permit in cities around the City of Waseca: 

Cities Shed size for a permit in sq. ft. Color & materials of shed 

City of Owatonna Sheds larger than 200 sq. ft No specification on shed 

matching house 

City of Faribault Exceeding 200 sq. ft For accessory structures that 

require a permit, materials and 

colors should closely match 

that of the principal structure.   

City of Mankato Exceeding 200 sq. ft Not specified 

City of Albert Lea Exceeding 200 sq. ft Not specified 

City of Lakeville Exceeding 200 sq. ft Not specified 



7 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #7.1 

154.156  EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT. 

 (B)   General requirements. 

      (2)   Erosion and sedimentation control. 

         (a)   Every applicant for a building permit or subdivision approval to disturb 500 square feet of  

land or 120 200 square feet for a building must adhere to the soil erosion and sedimentation control standards 

and specifications in strict conformance to the provisions of this section and the city’s engineering design 

standards for stormwater management.  

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #8 

§ 154.150 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, GENERALLY.

(B) Residential Districts 

(5)   Increase in wall height. The maximum side wall height for a detached garage in a residential district may 

be increased up to 20 feet 12 feet, provided that the maximum building height provision is not exceeded, and 

that an additional setback of two feet is provided from side and rear lot lines for each additional foot of side 

wall height over nine feet.  Side wall height is measured from the top of the concrete slab to the top of the top 

plate. 

Reasoning: 

Typographical error. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #9  

154.159 LANDSCAPING, SCREENING AND FENCES 

(L) 

(4) Seasonal / Snow Fencing  

(a) The allowed duration for putting up a seasonal or snow fence is between November 1 and March 31 of 

every year.  

Reasoning  

Currently, the City of Waseca Ordinance does not currently address seasonal snow fencing. 



8 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #10 

§ 154.161 PARKING REQUIREMENTS, OFF-STREET.

 (K)   Design requirements. 

(1) Site plan. All applications for site plan review shall depict, at a measurable scale, the location and 

arrangement of vehicle parking, curb cuts, driveways, and walkways. A Zoning permit and a site plan 

shall be submitted for secondary parking. Refer also to § 154.178, Site Plan Review, in the Application 

Reviews and Procedures chapter of this code. 

Reasoning: 

Hard Surfaces such as concrete, asphalt, and pavers can be cost prohibitive to the residents. However, the ability 

to use rock give residents the opportunity to park in areas not on grass and using rock reduces cost.  

PROPOSED AMENDMENT #11 

§ 154.162 PARKING IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS, SUPPLEMENTARY.

The following parking regulations apply to the R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4 zoning districts as well as to housing 

located in non-residential zoning districts.  These regulations supplement the off-street parking requirements of 

§ 154.161, Parking Requirements, Off-Street.

(A) General residential parking requirements.

      (1) Off street parking of any type of vehicle shall be provided in accordance with § 154.161 titled Parking 

Requirements, Off-Street. 

      (2) No more than four vehicles or one per licensed driver residing on the premises, whichever is more, may 

be parked or stored outside on the lot. For the purpose of this clause, a vehicle must be currently licensed and 

operable, have a capacity of nine or fewer passengers or be a truck not exceeding one ton capacity. 

      (3) Exterior secondary vehicle parking and storage shall be confined to surfaces paved with concrete, rock, 

asphalt, or pavers. All new or expanded parking shall meet this standard.  

      (4) All new construction, including garages, garage additions and parking or vehicle storage areas shall be 

served by an access drive made of concrete, asphalt, or pavers. 

      (5)   One-, two- or three-family residences: 

         (a)   Parking areas and circulation drives shall be set back at least five feet from any side or rear lot line. 

         (b)   Parking in the front yard shall not be located between the living space of the house and the street. 

         (c)   Front yard parking beyond the width of the garage (that is, in the side yard) shall be set back from the 

front property line at least ten feet. 

   (B)   Parking or storage of commercial-use vehicles, inoperable vehicles, unlicensed vehicles and vehicle 

parts. 

      (1)   Inoperable vehicles, unlicensed vehicle or vehicle parts shall not be stored outdoors, whether on a lot or 

on a street, in a residential district. 

      (2)   One commercial vehicle of Class 1, 2 or 3 may be parked or stored outside, whether on a lot or on a 

street, in a residential district. Class 1, 2 and 3 vehicles are defined by the U.S. Department of Transportation. 

   (C)   Parking or storage of recreational vehicles, boats, trailers, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles and similar 

vehicles. 



9 

      (1)   Recreational vehicles, boats, all-terrain vehicles, snowmobiles, special purpose trailers or other vehicles 

designed or used for off-road purposes may be parked or stored in a garage or other building or may be parked 

or stored outdoors as follows:  

         (a)   No more than two such vehicles, not more than one of which is a recreational vehicle, shall be parked 

or stored outdoors on each lot.  Such lot must be occupied by a principal structure, and such parking or storage 

shall occur only on asphalt, concrete, rock, or pavers but not in a space that is designated as required parking for 

the principal use.  A trailer with one or more vehicles on it shall be considered one vehicle. 

         (b)   Any such vehicle shall not be parked or stored within 5 feet of a side or rear lot line.  Vehicles may 

be parked within the required front setback provided vehicles are parked on an approved asphalt, concrete, rock, 

or pavers and shall not be within 10 feet of the front yard property line. 

         (c)   Such vehicles shall not be parked between the living space of the house and the street. 

         (d)   Recreational vehicles shall not be used as living or sleeping quarters for more than 14 days per year. 

(D) Secondary Parking 

      (1) Secondary Parking areas shall be paved with rocks and the perimeter barrier of the parking area shall be 

made of a minimum 2x material (Nominal size) secured to the ground and a minimum height which shall be 2 

inches higher than the finished rock height.  

      (2) The required minimum setbacks for secondary parking shall be the same as the setbacks for parking in 

each district, including General and Specific Development Requirements for this chapter. 

      (3) A Right-of-Way permit is required for any work proposed on the City Right-of-Way. 

(4) A Zoning permit and a site plan shall be submitted for review for secondary parking.  

(5) EXAMPLE: Frame the outline of the area with 2x3 landscape timbers to the desired hieght, anchored 

into the ground with re-rod, and fill the area with crushed rock. See Figure 15-2. 

Figure 15-2: 



Title: ADOPTING THE CITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

PRELIMINARY TAX LEVY COLLETIBLE IN 2022 AND 2022 PROPOSED 

BUDGET 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Resolution 21-44 

Adopting Preliminary Tax 

Levy & Budget 

Resolution 21-45 

Adopting Preliminary 

EDA Levy 

Originating 

Department: 

Finance Presented By: City Manager 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: 

1) Adopt Resolution 21-44: Approving the City Preliminary Tax Levy

Collectible in 2022 and Proposed 2022 General Fund Budget

2) Adopt Resolution 21-45: Approving the Preliminary City of Waseca

Economic Development Authority Tax Levy Collectible in 2022

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good Governance and Expanding and Leverage Economic Development Initiative 

BACKGROUND:  Following Council direction from the most recent September 7th work session, staff is 

presenting a resolution to set the 2022 preliminary tax levy. The resolution includes the total preliminary levy 

for the City of $5,244,353. This option includes a 4.3% increase in the tax levy amount requested. 

The City of Waseca Economic Development Authority (EDA) has met and reviewed their preliminary 2022 

budget. Based on the projected expenditure and future growth needs in the budget, the EDA requests the 2022 

preliminary tax levy in the amount of $92,604.  Under state statute the EDA’s maximum allowable levy is 

0.01813% of the City’s total taxable market value.  

The final levy, which is scheduled to be adopted by City Council on December 21, 2021, cannot be higher than 

the preliminary levy, but it can be lower. 

BUDGET IMPACT:  

The Preliminary 2022 General Fund budget includes the following: 

• Funding for salary adjustments from the Classification and Compensation Study findings. Wage

adjustments of 2.5% for employees effective January 1, 2022.

• Funding for projected workers compensation, general/property liability, and health insurance increases.

• Decrease in cable franchise revenues due to viewers moving to subscription-based tv

• Vision 2030 funding decrease

• Contracted Snow Removal Decrease

• Cleaning Services Increased

Request for City Council Action 

7B-C

x



• Decreased Transfers out

o PFA Debt Levy for Sewer is budgeted directly to the Sewer Fund

RECOMMENDATION: 

1) Adopt Resolution 21-44: Approving the City Preliminary Tax Levy Collectible in 2022 and Proposed

2022 General Fund Budget

2) Adopt Resolution 21-45: Approving the Preliminary City of Waseca Economic Development Authority

Tax Levy Collectible in 2022



RESOLUTION NO. 21-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVING THE CITY PRELIMINARY TAX LEVY 

COLLECTIBLE IN 2022 AND PROPOSED 2022 BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the City of Waseca, State of Minnesota, requires Property Tax to provide 

needed and necessary services to the citizens of the City of Waseca; and 

WHEREAS, State law requires adoption of a proposed 2022 proposed budget and 

preliminary tax levy by September 30, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Waseca, 

Waseca County, Minnesota, that the following sums of money are proposed to be levied for the 

current year, collectible in 2022 upon the taxable property in said City of Waseca for the 

following purposes: 

Distributed Based on Tax Capacity 

General Fund  $ 3,012,794 

Tax Abatement  77,810 

 Capital Funding  1,484,907 

 General Levy Total  $ 4,575,511 

 Debt Service Levy 

Wastewater Public Facilities 

 Authority (PFA) loan   181,267 

7th Avenue Bonds  155,300

Public Safety Building Bonds  150,800 

 Northeast Park   74,075 

Distributed Based on Market Value (Passed Through Referendum) 

 Water Park  107,400 

Total City Levy  $ 5,244,353 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Waseca, Waseca 

County, Minnesota, that the 2022 proposed General Fund Budget of $8,241,013 be approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Records Secretary is hereby instructed to 

transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditor of Waseca County, Minnesota, 

as required by law. 



Adopted this 21st day of September, 2021. 

        

_______________________ 

       R.D. SRP 

       MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-45 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY CITY OF WASECA 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TAX LEVY 
COLLECTIBLE IN 2022 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Waseca Economic Development Authority, State of Minnesota, 

requires Property Tax to provide needed and necessary services to the citizens of the City of 

Waseca; and 

WHEREAS, State law requires adoption of a proposed 2022 preliminary Economic 

Development Authority tax levy by September 30, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Waseca, 

Waseca County, Minnesota, that the following sum of money is proposed to be levied for the 

current year, collectible in 2022 upon the taxable property in said City of Waseca for the 

following purposes: 

 

Economic Development Authority Levy  $    92,604 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to transmit a 

certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditor of Waseca County, Minnesota, as required 

by law. 

 

Adopted this 21st day of September, 2021. 

 

  

 

             

       _______________________________ 

       R. D. SRP 

       MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

MIKE ANDERSON 

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 

 

 



Title: Ordinance No. 1093: Annexing property owned by the City of Waseca into City 
limits. 

Meeting Date: September 21, 2021 Agenda Item 
Number: 7D 

Action: MOTION 
REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 
RESOLUTION 
ORDINANCE 
DISCUSSION 

Supporting 
Documents: 

Ordinance No. 1093 

Originating 
Department: 

Administration Presented By: City Manager 

Approved By City 
Manager:  

Proposed Action: City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 1093: Annexing City 
owned property into City limits.  

How does this item 
pertain to Vision 2030 
goals? 

High Quality Community Assets 

BACKGROUND:  The City of Waseca owns 2.08 Acres of land in the Southeast part of town that currently is 
not within City Limits. The territory to be annexed lies within Woodville Township in the Waseca County. The 
property abuts the limits of the City of Waseca, and it is not included with any other municipality. The property 
is vacant and upon annexation, it will automatically be zoned R-1, Suburban Residential District.  

The MN Statute 414.033. Subdivision 2, Clause 1 indicates that the City can annex the property by ordinance 
since the City of Waseca owns the property. As a result, no public hearing will be held for this process.  

BUDGET IMPACT: None 

POLICY QUESTION: The City Council has the authority to approve annexations. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is recommending the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 1093: Annexing 
City owned property into City limits.  

Request for City Council Action 



ORDINANCE NO. 1093 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN LANDS FROM WOODVILLE TOWNSHIP 
INTO THE CITY 

OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 
AND ESTABLISHING ZONING THEREOF 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Waseca, is the owner of the property, incorporated herein by 

this reference (the Property); and 
 

WHEREAS, The Property is described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit B attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council finds that the Property abuts the limits of the City 

of Waseca; the Property is owned by the City of Waseca; and the Property is not included with 
any other municipality. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of Waseca, Minnesota does hereby determine, 

find and ordain: 
 
 
Section 1. That the Property abuts the City of Waseca and consists of 2.08 acres. 
 
Section 2.  That the Property is owned by the City of Waseca. 
 
Section 3.  The corporate limits of the City of Waseca area extended to include the Property. 
Section 4.  Certified copies of this Ordinance shall be filed with Municipal Boundary 

Adjustments Office, and the Clerk of the Woodville Township Board. 
 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be effective: upon passage and legal publication and the  
filing of the certified copies and, upon approval of the Ordinance by the 
Municipal Boundary Adjustments Office. 
 

Section 6. By the City of Waseca ordinance, upon annexation this parcel will automatically 
be zoned R-1, Suburban Residential District.   
 

Section 7. The Waseca Zoning Map shall be amended as shown in the  
attached EXHIBIT C. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Adopted by the City Council of Waseca, Minnesota, this 21st day of September 2021. 
 

 
__________________________  

                                                                                                        R. D. SRP 
                                                                                                        MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________  
MIKE ANDERSON 
ASSISTANT TO THE CITY MANAGER 
 

Introduced: 7/16/21 
Adopted: 9/21/21  

Published: 9/29/21  
Effective: 10/2/21  



272561 

Exhibit “A” 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Beginning at a point on the south line of the right-of-way of the Chicago 
Northwestern Railway Company Three Hundred Thirty-Nine and Six Tenths (339.6) 

feet South of the East Quarter (E¼) corner and Two Hundred (200) feet West of 
the East line of the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) 

of Section Seventeen (17), Township One Hundred Seven (107), Range Twenty-Two 
(22); thence running South on a line parallel to the East line of said 

Section Seventeen (17) a distance of Five Hundred Seventy and Eighty-Four 
Hundredths (570.84) feet; thence running West at a Ninety Degree (90°) angle 

Five Hundred (500) feet; thence running North on a line parallel to the East 
line of said Section (17) a distance of Six Hundred Sixty-Four and 

Eighty-Four Hundredths (664.84) feet to the South line of the right-of-way of 
The Chicago Northwestern Railway Company; thence in a Southeasterly direction 

along the South line of the said right-of-way a distance of Five Hundred Five 
and Seventy-Five Hundredths (505.75) feet to the point of beginning and 

containing Seven (7) acres. TOGETHER with all right, title and interest the 
grantors have in, to and from the land hereinbefore described over and along 
a cartway Fifteen (15) feet wide and described as follows, to-wit: Beginning 
at a point in the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of 

Section Seventeen (17), Township One Hundred Seven (107), Range Twenty-Two 
(22), Three Hundred Forty-One and Eighty-Eight Hundredths (341.88) feet South 

of the East Quarter (E¼) corner and One Hundred Eighty-Five (185) feet West 
of the East line of said Section, thence South Five Hundred Sixty-Nine and 

Fifty-Six Hundredths (569.56) feet on a line parallel to the East line of 
said Section; thence West at a Ninety Degree (90°) angle Fifteen (15) feet; 

thence North Five Hundred Seventy-One and Eighty-Four Hundredths (571.84) 
feet on a line parallel to the East line of said section; thence Southeast 

along the South side of the right-of-way of the Chicago Northwestern Railway 
Company Fifteen and Seventeen Hundredths (15.17) feet to the point of 

beginning, EXCEPTING THEREFROM: Beginning at a point Five Hundred Forty-Nine 
(549) feet South and Two Hundred (200) feet West of the Northeast corner of 

The Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of Section Seventeen (17), Township One Hundred 
Seven (107) North, Range Twenty-Two (22) West, thence South parallel to 

the East line of said Southeast Quarter (SE¼) a distance of Three Hundred Sixty- 
One and Forty-Four Hundredths (361.44) feet; thence West Five Hundred (500) 

feet; thence North on a line parallel to the East line of said Southeast 
Quarter (SE¼) a distance of Four Hundred Forty (440) feet; thence East Two 

Hundred Sixty (260) feet; thence deflecting Eleven Degrees Twenty-Six Minutes 
(11°26’) right a distance of Two Hundred Forty-Four and Eighty-Five 
Hundredths (244.85) feet; thence South parallel to the East line of said 
Southeast Quarter (SE¼) a distance of Thirty (30) feet to the point of 

beginning; containing Four and Ninety-Two Hundredths (4.92) acres, more or 
less. 

 
 
 



C l e a r
L a k e This document is not a survey and should be used for reference purposes only!

[0 125 25062.5
Feet

REZONING SITE MAP

C
ity

 L
im

its

PROPOSED AREA
TO BE REZONED R1

_̂ Owner: City of Waseca
Parcel: R12.017.1200

YELLOW OUTLINED AREA
TO BE REZONED TO R1 -

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT

City
of

Waseca

Railway
City Limits

That part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 17, Township 107,
Range 22 West in Waseca County, Minnesota legally described as
follows:

Commencing at the NE corner of the SE ¼ of Section 17, thence
South 00°18’40” West 339.60 feet along the East line of the SE ¼ of
Section 17, thence South 88°13’09” West 200.13 feet to the Point of
Beginning, thence North 81°55’50” West 504.62 feet along the
southerly right-of-way line of the Chicago Northwestern Railway
Company, thence South 00°18’40” West 196.97 feet, thence South
89°41’20” East 260.00 feet, thence South 78°15’21” East 244.85 feet,
thence North 00°18’40” East to the Point of Beginning, containing
2.00 acres, more or less.

Ci
ty

 L
im

its

5th Ave SE

355th  Ave  / County Road 5

R12.017.1200

12
th

 S
t S

E

12th St Cir SE

City
of

Waseca

Woodville
Township

Woodville
Township

Exhibit "B"



C l e a r
L a k e This document is not a survey and should be used for reference purposes only!

[0 125 25062.5
Feet

ANNEXATION SITE MAP

C
ity

 L
im

its

PROPOSED
ANNEXATION

AREA

_̂ Owner: City of Waseca
Parcel: R12.017.1200

ANNEXATION REQEUST
BETWEEN

CITY OF WASECA
AND

WOODVILLE TOWNSHIP

City
of

Waseca

Railway

That part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 17, Township 107,
Range 22 West in Waseca County, Minnesota legally described as
follows:

Commencing at the NE corner of the SE ¼ of Section 17, thence
South 00°18’40” West 339.60 feet along the East line of the SE ¼ of
Section 17, thence South 88°13’09” West 200.13 feet to the Point of
Beginning, thence North 81°55’50” West 504.62 feet along the
southerly right-of-way line of the Chicago Northwestern Railway
Company, thence South 00°18’40” West 196.97 feet, thence South
89°41’20” East 260.00 feet, thence South 78°15’21” East 244.85 feet,
thence North 00°18’40” East to the Point of Beginning, containing
2.00 acres, more or less.

Ci
ty

 L
im

its

5th Ave SE

355th  Ave  / County Road 5

R12.017.1200

12
th

 S
t S

E

12th St Cir SE

City
of

Waseca

Woodville
Township

Woodville
Township

Exhibit "C"


	7A - Mayo - Packet for CC.pdf
	Mayo - RCCA-2 - Rezoning & Plats
	Mayo - MEMO for Packet
	Mayo - Memo
	Mayo - Application Narrative
	Mayo - MAP - Major Subdivision
	Mayo - Site Photos
	Mayo - MAP - Rezoning
	Zoning MAP - January 2021
	Mayo - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - Final Plat

	Mayo - Ordinance 1095 - Rezoning
	Mayo - EXHIBIT A - Rezoning Map
	Mayo - Res. 21-47 - Prelim & Final Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT B - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT C - Final Plat

	7A.2 - Text Amendments - Packet for CC.pdf
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 150
	ORDINANCE NO. 1096 - Text Amendment (Chapter 150)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 151
	ORDINANCE NO. 1097 - Text Amendment (Chapter 151)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 154
	ORDINANCE NO. 1098 - Text Amendment (Chapter 154)
	Zoning Code Ammendment - Memo for COUNCIL 002

	7A - Mayo - Packet for CC.pdf
	Mayo - RCCA-2 - Rezoning & Plats
	Mayo - MEMO for Packet
	Mayo - Memo
	Mayo - Application Narrative
	Mayo - MAP - Major Subdivision
	Mayo - Site Photos
	Mayo - MAP - Rezoning
	Zoning MAP - January 2021
	Mayo - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - Final Plat

	Mayo - Ordinance 1095 - Rezoning
	Mayo - EXHIBIT A - Rezoning Map
	Mayo - Res. 21-47 - Prelim & Final Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT B - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT C - Final Plat

	7A.2 - Text Amendments - Packet for CC.pdf
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 150
	ORDINANCE NO. 1096 - Text Amendment (Chapter 150)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 151
	ORDINANCE NO. 1097 - Text Amendment (Chapter 151)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 154
	ORDINANCE NO. 1098 - Text Amendment (Chapter 154)
	Zoning Code Ammendment - Memo for COUNCIL 002

	7A - Mayo - Packet for CC.pdf
	Mayo - RCCA-2 - Rezoning & Plats
	Mayo - MEMO for Packet
	Mayo - Memo
	Mayo - Application Narrative
	Mayo - MAP - Major Subdivision
	Mayo - Site Photos
	Mayo - MAP - Rezoning
	Zoning MAP - January 2021
	Mayo - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - Final Plat

	Mayo - Ordinance 1095 - Rezoning
	Mayo - EXHIBIT A - Rezoning Map
	Mayo - Res. 21-47 - Prelim & Final Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT B - Preliminary Plat
	Mayo - EXHIBIT C - Final Plat

	7A.2 - Text Amendments - Packet for CC.pdf
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 150
	ORDINANCE NO. 1096 - Text Amendment (Chapter 150)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 151
	ORDINANCE NO. 1097 - Text Amendment (Chapter 151)
	RCCA - Text Amendment - Chapter 154
	ORDINANCE NO. 1098 - Text Amendment (Chapter 154)
	Zoning Code Ammendment - Memo for COUNCIL 002




